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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website (www.hkgem.com) for at
least 7 days from its date of posting and on the designated website of this Company at www.hklistco.com/8265.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Powerwell Pacific
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to you the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (the
“Year”).

Business Review

Sourcing Business

Year 2016 is a challenging year for global consumer market in
watches and costume jewelries business, the results in our line of
businesses was mixed with a shrink of overall turnover for the Year
compared to Previous Year.

For our analog watches business, most of our brand owner customers
were affected by the slow economy together with the change in
market of popularization of smart watches, we noted a significantly
decline in orders received from them during the second half of the
year. As a result, revenue in our watches business has dropped, and
we work hard to maintain liquidity and the bottom line in 2016.

For our display and packaging business, orders received were
increased. Coupled with our tight cost control, the business was in
black.

Costume jewelries business remained slow for the US market for
the Year, orders received from our major customer dropped and the
revenue for the Year was affected compared to the Previous Year.

The overall results in our Sourcing Business was decreased, however,
we were able to keep our business in black in such a difficult Year
and remained self-liquidating and self-financing. Sourcing Business
contributed to the Group’s revenue, representing approximately
HK$110,236,000, a decrease of 30.6% as compared to Previous Year
or 36.3% of the Group’s total revenue during the year. The profit of
this segment for the year amounted to approximately HK$6,783,000,
a decrease of 58.4% as compared to Previous Year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

PRC Silverware Business

The 2016 G20 Hangzhou summit was held on 4 and 5 September
2016 in the city of Hangzhou, Zhejiang. Ahead of the G20 summit,
security was tightened as visitors were required to wait in line to
pass through new security points. Retailers in Hangzhou areas were
required to temporarily shut down their shops to take vacation leave
from mid-August to early September. Businesses in Hangzhou have
also been hit hard by the tightened traffic controls, as well as a drop
in the number of tourists to the city. Both the G20 event in Hangzhou
and the China’s National Day week-long public holiday which caused
the S-collodi branded retail shops to take holiday break affecting the
sales in the third quarter of the Year. Nevertheless, the revenue and
profit contributed by PRC Silverware Business in the second half of
the Year were HK$29,107,000 and HK$16,236,000, respectively,
decreased by HK$17,535,000 and HK$6,024,000 compared
with the first half of the Year. By the end of 2016, our subsidiary,
Tong Yin scaled down its retail outlets from eight to seven. PRC
Silverware Business contributed to the Group’s revenue, representing
approximately HK$75,749,000, an increase of 18.8% as compared to
Previous Year or 25.0% of the Group’s total revenue during the year.
The profit of this segment for the year amounted to approximately
HK$38,496,000, an increase of 29.6% as compared to Previous Year.

Electric Vehicle Business (“EV Business”)

The Group had involved in the display of the model of AVASS brand
(model: BNEG125CBEV) 12.8m pure electric bus during Macao
International Environmental Co-operation Forum and Exhibition from
31 March 2016 to 2 April 2016. Two stages of electric bus test trial
runs had taken place at Macao in August and November 2016,
which provided free rides to the public (Macao route E02, EO3) and
raised much attention for its huge advantage on energy conservation,
emission reduction and noise reduction. In addition, the Group has
proposed and negotiated research and development funding from
certain government scheme. The progress of these research and
development projects were satisfactory. The EV Business contributed
to the Group’s revenue, representing approximately HK$117,283,000
or 38.7% of the Group’s total revenue during the year. The
profit of this segment for the year amounted to approximately
HK$12,574,000.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Prospects

Sourcing Business

The demand of the global retail business of watches and costume
jewelries is yet to be seen, our line of business will be remained
extremely challenging in the coming years. We will continue to
practice tight cost control and remain tight in quality assurance of our
product, to better our quality, to provide an edge on our products.
We shall maintain competitive and always be alert for new potential
customers.

PRC Silverware Business

Tong Yin is planning its marketing strategies for the forthcoming
years. Management anticipates that more than half its future sales
will be generated by the new media. Tong Yin silverware retailing
will diversify its marketing through TV shopping channels. Currently,
wealthy and emerging middle class, especially the female class age
from 45 to 55, prefer TV shopping. Further, it will work with some
developers for the home buyers to renovate their new residences with
silverware decoration.

EV Business

Air pollution is still casting an imminent problem to some major cities
in mainland China, such as Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen. The
Government of China is willing to offer subsidies for PRC automotive
manufacturers to develop electric vehicle to reduce air pollution.
Currently, there are several types of the electric buses that will receive
certain amount of subsidies. Thus, our subsidiary, Xincheng will put
emphasis on research and development of these electric bus models.
In addition, there are market demands of cargo vans for the farmers
to discharge their duties in the rural areas. Management is convinced
that EV Business will be the revenue driver for the Group in the coming
years.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity to extend my heartfelt gratitude
to our fellow Board members, management, and employees for their
steadfast contribution, dedication, and hard work to the Group. On
behalf of the Board, | express sincere gratitude to our customers,
suppliers, business partners and shareholders for their continuous
support. We shall persist with best efforts in striving for optimal
development for the Group and returns for our shareholders in the
times to come.

Fei Jie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Financial Review

Revenue

The Group reported revenue of approximately HK$303,268,000
(2015: HK$222,647,000) for the Year, a year-on-year increase of
approximately HK$80,621,000 or 36.2% as compared with the
Previous Year. The increase in the Group’s revenue was attributable
to the contribution from the Electric Vehicle Business acquired by the
Group during the Year.

During the year, the Sourcing Business had generated revenue of
approximately HK$110,236,000 (2015: HK$158,880,000) to the
Group, a decrease of HK$48,644,000 or a drop of 30.6% Previous
Year to the Group, representing approximately 36.3% (2015: 71.4%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Same as the Previous Year, sales
to U.S. and Germany customers represented the major source of
revenue of the Sourcing Business. As compared with the Previous
Year, revenue from U.S. customers was amounted to approximately
HK$32,453,000, decreased by approximately HK$29,254,000
or 47.4% and revenue from Germany customers was amounted
to approximately HK$43,007,000, decreased by approximately
HK$14,262,000 or 24.9%.

Sourcing of watches had generated revenue of approximately
HK$70,642,000 (2015: HK$122,280,000), representing a decrease
of approximately HK$51,638,000 or 42.2% as compared with the
Previous Year.

The business of display and packaging products in Sourcing
Business had contributed revenue of approximately HK$32,318,000
(2015: HK$26,931,000) for the Year, representing an increase
of approximately HK$5,387,000 or 20.0% as compared with the
Previous Year.

Sourcing of costume jewelries recorded sales of approximately
HK$7,276,000 (2015: HK$9,669,000) for the Year, a decline of
approximately HK$2,393,000 or 24.7% as compared with the
Previous Year.

The PRC Silverware Business had generated revenue of
approximately HK$75,749,000 (2015: HK$63,767,000) during the
Year, representing approximately 25.0% (2015: 28.6%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

The Electric Vehicle Business established by the Group during the
year generated revenue of approximately HK$117,283,000 (2015: nil)
for the year representing 38.7% of the group’s revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

The Group recorded an overall cost of sales of approximately
HK$203,597,000 (2015: HK$136,103,000) during the Year, which
represented an increase of approximately HK$67,494,000 or 49.6%
as compared with the Previous Year.

In respect of the Sourcing Business, it recorded cost of sales
during the Year amounted to approximately HK$82,450,000 (2015:
HK$116,868,000), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$34,418,000 or 29.5%.

On the other hand, the cost of sales in respect of the PRC Silverware
Business amounted to approximately HK$27,198,000 (2015:
HK$19,235,000).

The cost of sales recorded in the Electric Vehicle Business amounted
to approximately HK$93,949,000 (2015: nil) during the Year.

The overall gross profit of the Group increased from approximately
HK$86,544,000 in Previous Year to approximately HK$99,671,000
in current Year, representing an increase of approximately
HK$13,127,000 or 15.2%. Nevertheless, the gross profit margin
decreased 6.0% from 38.9% to 32.9%.

The gross profit of the Sourcing Business decreased by approximately
HK$14,227,000 or 33.9% to approximately HK$27,785,000 (2015:
HK$42,012,000). Gross profit margin of the Sourcing Business was
approximately 25.2%, 1.2% lower than that of 26.4% of the Previous
Year.

The PRC Silverware Business contributed gross profit of
approximately HK$48,552,000 (2015: HK$44,532,000), representing
an increase of approximately HK$4,020,000 or 9.0%. The gross profit
margin of the PRC Silverware Business was approximately 64.1%
(2015: 69.8%), a decrease of 5.7%.

The Electric Vehicle Business contributed gross profit of
approximately HK$23,334,000 (2015: nil), representing a gross profit
margin of approximately 19.9% (2015: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Selling, distribution and Administrative Expenses

The overall selling and distribution expenses of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$3,034,000, representing a reduction of
HK$1,974,000 or 39.4% as compared with that of HK$5,008,000 in
the Previous Year.

Selling and distribution expenses in respect of the Sourcing Business
decreased from approximately HK$769,000 to approximately
HK$624,000 as compared with the Previous Year, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$145,000 or 18.9%.

On the other hand, selling and distribution expenses in respect of the
PRC Silverware Business amounted to approximately HK$2,082,000
(2015: HK$4,239,000) during the year, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$2,157,000 or 50.9% as compared with the
Previous Year.

The Electric Vehicle Business recorded selling and distribution
expenses of HK$328,000 (2015: nil) during the Year.

Overall administrative and other operating expenses for the Year were
approximately HK$53,875,000 (2015: HK$52,075,000), representing
an increase of approximately HK$1,800,000 or 3.5%.

Profit/loss

The Group’s profit for the Year was amounted to approximately
HK$24,261,000 (2015: HK$9,066,000), which comprises
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$10,328,000 (2015: loss of approximately HK$1,664,000) and
profit attributable to non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$13,933,000 (2015: HK$10,730,000).

The Group’s profit comprised of segment profit on Sourcing Business
of approximately HK$6,783,000 (2015: HK$16,320,000); segment
profit on PRC Silverware Business of approximately HK$38,496,000
(2015: HK$29,699,000) and segment profit on Electric Vehicle
Business of approximately HK$12,574,000 (2015: nil).

The aggregate of interest income, net corporate expenses and
income tax expense amounted to approximately HK$33,592,000
(2015: HK$36,953,000) in total during the Year.
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e XFEFEFEER LT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group generally finances its daily operations from internally
generated cash flows. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had
bank balances and cash of approximately HK$127,722,000 (2015:
HK$145,700,000). The group did not have any bank borrowings,
guarantee and banking facilities.

Taking into account net current assets of approximately
HK$182,948,000 (2015: HK$143,868,000) as at 31 December 2016,
the Group has sufficient financial resources to satisfy its working
capital requirement and to achieve its business objectives.

Secured Loan

On 6 February 2015, the Company entered into a loan agreement
with a third party in relation to a loan of HK$15,000,000 obtained
exclusively for the purpose of providing working capital and general
funding to the Company and/or its subsidiaries. The loan is fully
secured by the shares charge in respect of the entire issued share
capital of Powerwell Pacific Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The loan bears
interest at 1% per annum above the HKD prime lending rate published
by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and
is repayable together with interest not later than 12 months from
the drawdown date. On 6 February 2016, the Company signed
a supplemental loan agreement to extend the repayment date to
another 12 months from the original repayment date. On 6 February
2017, the Company signed another supplemental loan agreement
to further extend the repayment date to another 12 months from the
extended repayment date.

During the Year, the interest expense incurred on the secured loan
amounted to approximately HK$900,000 (2015: HK$811,000).

Risk and uncertainties

The Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of operations or
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly
or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The risk factors that
could result in the Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of
operations or growth prospects are identified as below, while there
may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those identified
below which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.
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Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited & AZ¥&EBER A T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Business risks

As a result of the completion of acquisition of Sale Assets located in
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC during the Year, a significant
portion of the Group’s assets are located in and turnover is derived
from the PRC in which the risks in conducting business activities may
differ from other countries in many aspects. The factors affecting
these risks include the political, economic and social conditions, and
the law and regulations.

Operational risks

With the increasing competition in the industry and technical
requirement in development of Electric Vehicle Business, there are
risks in relating to failure to compete with the competitors in the
industry. We have engaged qualified managerial, operational and
marketing team to deal with the management, management and
operation of the Business.

Regulatory risks

The Group is exposed to regulatory risks, especially in the Electric
Vehicle Business, in relation to failure to comply with relevant laws and
regulations in financial, operational and environment aspects.

Financial risks
Details of the financial risks are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in United States
dollars (“US$”), Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi (‘RMB”). Therefore,
the Group is exposed to foreign currency exchange risk. The Directors
have positive attitude to regularly monitor the exposure to foreign
exchange so as to reduce the foreign exchange rate risk to minimal.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
Please see the discussion in section “Key Relationships with
Employees, Customers and Suppliers” under “Directors’ Report” on
page 29 of this report.
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e XFEFEFEER LT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had contracted but not provided
for capital commitments for purchase and construction of property,
plant and equipment of HK$1,056,000 (2015: nil).

Significant Investments held Material Acquisitions

On 8 December 2014, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party in relation to the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital in Core Kingdom Limited (“Core Kingdom”)
plus the shareholder’s loan due by Core Kingdom. At the date of
completion, Core Kingdom indirectly owned 51% equity interests
in Tong Yin, a company engaged in the business of retail of luxury
brand silverware and silver utensils in the PRC (the “Acquisition”).
The consideration in the amount of HK$36,000,000 was satisfied by
the allotment and issue, credited as fully paid, of 26,000,000 new
shares with total value of HK$31,200,000 and a cash payment of
HK$4,800,000 to the vendor. All conditions to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement had been fulfilled and the transaction was completed on
27 February 2015. Further details of the Acquisition were set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 9 December 2014 and 27
February 2015 respectively.

Completed Acquisition of Sale Assets in Huzhou and Issue of
Convertible Bonds

On 1 June 2016, the Company issued convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$110,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) as the
consideration payable of the sale assets under the sale and purchase
agreement dated 5 November 2015 entered into by the #N{EKE
;9B AR AR (transliterated into “Huzhou Xincheng Electric Vehicle
Co., Ltd.”, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and as “Purchaser”) and /M BKEMGR AT (transliterated
into “Huzhou Brighsun Battery Co. Ltd”) and M BKEEAR
A d] (transliterated into “Huzhou Brighsun Automobile Co. Ltd")
(collectively, “Vendors”) and &#£H£ (Huang Kejun) and E4R8)T (Zhang
Genjiang, “Mr, Zhang”) (collectively, “Guarantors”). The holders of
the convertible bonds have the right to convert the outstanding
principal amount of the convertible bonds on the expiry of 6 months
from the date of issue of the convertible bonds up to the maturity
date of 1 June 2018. Pursuant to the Company Information Sheet
dated 7 July 2016, the outstanding convertible bonds amounted to
HK$110,000,000 which can be converted into 1,000,000,000 Shares
at the conversion price of HK$0.11.
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Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

On 7 December 2016, as permitted under the terms of Convertible
Bonds and with the written consent of the Company, Convertible
Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of HK$56,948,026 had
been transferred from the Vendors to Top Bliss Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands wholly owned by
Mr. Zhang. Mr. Zhang is a director and the controlling shareholder of a
company which holds 49% of AT/ TiBif & ¢ BLE B R A7 (Zhejiang
Tong Yin Precious Metal Operation Company Limited), an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is a
connected person of the Company as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules. Mr. Zhang also had shareholding interest in the Vendors.

On 19 December 2016, the Company received a conversion notice
from Top Bliss Holdings Limited for the exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$56,948,026 at the Conversion Price of HK$0.11 per
Conversion Share (“the Conversion”). Upon such Conversion, a total
of 517,709,327 Conversion Shares has been allotted and issued,
credited as fully paid, to Top Bliss Holdings Limited within 5 Business
Days in accordance with the provisions of the Convertible Bonds. The
517,709,327 Conversion Shares, having an aggregate nominal value
of HK$10,354,186.54, represent about 33.76% and 25.24% of the
issued share capital of the Company immediately before and after
the issue of such Conversion Shares respectively. Immediately after
the Conversion, the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds amounts to HK$53,051,974, all of which are held by Huzhou
Brighsun Automobile Co., Ltd.

Further details of the Acquisition were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 9 November 2015, 20 November 2015, 18
December 2015 and 13 January 2016, 1 June 2016 and the Circular
issued by the Company dated 18 January 2016 respectively and
the poll result of the Special General Meeting were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 February 2016. Further details
of the conversion of the Convertible Bonds were set out in the
announcement dated 19 December 2016.

There were no significant investment held as at 31 December 2016.

Save as aforesaid, there were no other material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries during the Year.
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e XFEFEFEER LT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Fund Raising Activities

Open Offer

On 31 March 2015, the Company announced its proposal to raise
funds by way of an open offer of one offer share for every two
shares held by the qualifying shareholders at a subscription price
of HK$0.70 per offer share (the “Open Offer”). The Open Offer was
fully underwritten by Emperor Securities Limited (the “Underwriter”)
pursuant to the underwriting agreement (“the Underwriting
Agreement”) dated 30 March 2015 entered into by and between
the Company and the Underwriter. Pursuant to the Underwriting
Agreement, the Underwriter had conditionally agreed to underwrite all
the 88,000,000 offer shares subject to the terms and conditions set
out in the Underwriting Agreement. The aggregate nominal value of
the offer shares was HK$8,800,000.

BIRE R M AT

REEH

REAHE
R2015F3A31H - ARFIEHMERZEE
BIRRBIFEMRRD B —REERD
ZEE  UERBERM.70EB T 2REE
ETARBERE([AFRBE]) - AHEE
HASEFHF(EB)BRAR( BEE]BE
AR EBHEEATEI S A #A20159F3 A 30
HzBi#Ema(eHEBRl) 288 - BE
BiEHZE  BHEECAERGERERESHE D
& BT A 5 R R G 14 2 1R §5.88,000,000 8%
BERD - FHERMD 2 LHEE 48,800,000/
5 o

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the use of net proceeds TR EJ ANEBR AFFBETHRK 2 B HH
applied by the Group during the period from the completion date of  %959,300,000% 7T & T 15 3k 18 )% %8 F i& 0 4R
the Open Offer of approximately HK$59,300,000 were utilized as 2T -

follows:

Net proceeds

Date of raised Intended use Actual use

announcement Event (approximately) of proceeds of proceeds

2B Bt ERMERE FRERIARE A& FIERIEERRR

FH(#4)

31 March 2015 Open offer on the basis of HK$59,300,000 Financing future investment (i) Approximately
one offer share for every activities if and when HK$29,300,000 was
two shares at the suitable opportunities utilized as expansion of
subscription price at arise and business silverware retail business
HK$0.70 per offer share development and and related investment
which was completed working capital development.
in May 2015 requirement of the Group

(i) Approximately
HK$30,000,000 was
utilized as investment in
the business of electric
vehicles.
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Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited & AZ¥&EBER A T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Further details of the Open Offer were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 31 March 2015 and the prospectus issued by
Company dated 28 April 2015 and results of the Open Offer were set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 19 May 2015.

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate (“Placing”)

On 14 July 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement
(the “Placing Agreement”) with an agent (the “Placing Agent”) and
the Placing was completed on 27 July 2015 in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement. The closing price of
the share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the Placing
Agreement is HK$0.90. An aggregate of 35,200,000 placing shares
have been successfully placed by the Placing Agent to not less than
six placees at the placing price of HK$0.725 per Placing Share.

The net proceeds of the Placing of approximately HK$25,000,000
were utilized as follows:

Net proceeds
raised
(approximately)
ERMERE
FE(BL)

Date of
announcement

2mEH

Event

ESL

15 July 2015 Placing of new shares HK$25,000,000

under general mandate

2015%7H15H RE—REEREF RN 25,000,000/% 7T

Further details of the Placing have been set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 15 July 2015, 16 July 2015 and 27 July 2015.
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Actual use
of proceeds
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and administrative
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Group.
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ZEXFEFEFEER LT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Grant of Share Options

Share Option Scheme

On 27 May 2015 (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted share
options (the “Share Options”) to the eligible persons within the
Group (the “Grantees”) pursuant to the Company’s share option
scheme launched on 22 December 2010, subject to acceptance by
the Grantees. The Share Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe
for a total of 15,000,000 ordinary shares with nominal value of
HK$0.10 each (the “Shares”) in the capital of the Company upon the
exercise of the Share Options in full. The exercise price of the Share
Options granted of HK$1.17 per Share represent the highest of (i)
the closing price of HK$1.17 per Share on the Date of Grant; (ii) the
average closing price of HK$1.04 per Share for the five business
days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of HK$0.10 per Share. Details of the Grant of Share Options
was set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27 May
2015. 7,500,000 options had been exercised and gross proceeds of
HK$8,775,000 was received from exercise of these options. Upon the
Share Subdivision became effective on 4 May 2016, the exercise price
and the number of outstanding options were adjusted to HK$0.234
and 37,500,000 shares respectively in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2016, no
option was lapsed and there were 37,500,000 options outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme.

Dividends
The Group did not recommend the payment of any dividend during
the Year. (2015: nil)

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had 197 (2015: 112) employees as at the end of the Year.
The Group’s remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing
market practice and are determined on the basis of performance,
qualification and experience of individual employee. The Company
recognises the importance of a good relationship with the employees
by providing competitive remuneration package to the employees
including salaries, allowances, insurance, discretionary bonus, and
training for human resources upskilling.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
2 May 2017 to Monday, 8 May 2017, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on 8 May 2017, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 28 April 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present this corporate governance report for the Year.
This report highlights the key corporate governance practices of the
Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability
and corporate governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the
Group, improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding
the interests of shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the Year, save as disclosed below:

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and
set out in writing. The Company does not officially have a position
of chief executive, but Mr. Fei Jie, the Chairman of the Board, has
been assuming the roles of chief executive of the Company during
the Period. The Board believes that the roles of chairman and chief
executive performed by Mr. Fei Jie can provide the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allow for more effective and efficient
business planning and decisions as well as execution of long term
business strategies.

In view of the long-term development needs of the Company, Mr.
Ng Chin Ming Stephen was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and
executive director of the Company on 10 March 2017.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires all independent non-
executive directors and non-executive directors should attend general
meetings of listed issuers. Mr. Jim Yiu Ming and Mr. Cheung Siu
Wah, independent non-executive directors, were unable to attend
the annual general meeting held on 3 May 2016 due to their personal
commitments.

Directors Securities Transactions

The Company adopted the model code for securities transactions
by the Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. On specific enquiry made, all the Directors have
confirmed compliance with the Model Code throughout the Year.
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Board of Directors

The Board is currently composed of seven Directors, three being
executive Directors and four being Independent Non-executive
Directors as set out below.

Executive Directors

Mr. Fei Jie, Chairman

Mr. Fung Chi Kin

Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on 10 March 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Siu Wah

Mr. Jim Yiu Ming

Mr. Shen Ruolei

Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy

The Board is responsible for the overall management and affairs of the
Company and to maximize returns for shareholders. The day-to-day
operations and management of the Company are delegated to the
Executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Biographies of Directors” of this annual report.

Chairman

During the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016, Mr. Fei
Jie as the chairman of the Board to lead strategic management and
business development of the Group.

The Company does not officially have a position of chief executive, but
Mr. Fei Jie, the Chairman of the Board, has been assuming the roles
of chief executive of the Company during the Year.

On 10 March 2017, Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen was appointed as
Chief Executive Officer and executive director of the Company in view
of the long-term development needs.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed four Independent Non-executive Directors representing
more than one-third of the Board and at least one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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The functions of Independent Non-executive Directors are primarily
to bring an independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conducts at board meetings.

Confirmation of Independence

Each of Independent Non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence by reference to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers that all Independent
Non-executive Directors were independent during the Year.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All the Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors,
are appointed for terms of one year and subject to retirement by
rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, (i) any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election; and (ii) at each annual general
meeting, not less than one-third of the Directors then in office shall
retire and every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

During the Year, the Company provides regular updates on the
business performance of the Group to the Directors, so as to ensure
that they had appropriate understanding of the Group’s business and
of their duties and responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules and
the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. The Directors are
continually updated on the latest development regarding the GEM
Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
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Board Meetings Held and Attendance

The CG Code requires regular meeting of the Board be held at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or by
telephone conference. Under code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code,
notice of at least 14 days should be given of a regular board meeting
to all Directors to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Certain
regular Board meetings were convened with less than 14 days’ notice
to enable the Board members to react timely and make expeditious
decision making in respect of transactions which were of significance
to the Group’s business. As a result, the Board meetings were held
with a shorter notice period than required with the consent of all the
Directors for that time being. The Board will do its best endeavours
to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in
future. Adequate and appropriate information is circulated normally
three days in advance of Board meetings to the Directors. In addition
to the regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met with
Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of another
Executive Director.
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The attendance record of the Directors at Board meetings and Board BERAEELR{THNEECSZREEEE
Committee meetings held during the Year are set out below: egRmbFECHEEINNT

Number of meetings attended/
Eligible to attended
HE aEEHENEREE
Remuneration Audit Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee

EXE ¥FWNESE 2 EREEE REZEEE

Executive Directors BMITESE
Mr. Fel Jie, Chairman BAREE  EE 7/8 N/ATNE A N/ATNE N/ATE A
Mr. Fung Chi Kin it 8/8 N/ATE A N/ATE A N/ATiE A
Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, ARAPLE - N/AZ 4 F N/ANE N/ANE N/A 38

Chief Executive Officer TR AAEL

(appointed on 10 March 2017) (201753 A

10HEZF)

Independent Non-executive Directors JEIIFEHITES
Mr. Cheung Siu Wah RAESL A 8/8 2/2 5/5 2/2
Mr. Jim Yiu Ming ENERE S 7/8 1/2 5/5 1/2
Mr. Shen Ruolei LB B LA 77 N/ANE A N/AA i R 1/1
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy BRI ST A 7/8 2/2 5/5 2/2
General Meetings Held and Attendance EETHREXERHERL
The attendance record of the Directors at general meetings held EFRAFERITH R AN GH) L FE L8 &
during the Year is set out below: g

Number of meetings attended/
Eligible to attended
HE SERHENEREE
Annual General Special General
Meeting Meeting
REBEXE BRI KXE

Executive Directors HITESE

Mr. Fei Jie, Chairman BNEE - F/E 11 2/2
Mr. Fung Chi Kin BERE A 1/1 2/2
Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, Chief Executive Officer mEAEEE @ TTEAAR N/A i A N/AA 3

(appointed on 10 March 2017) (20174
3A10BEZRT)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIAHEHITES

Mr. Cheung Siu Wah RIS A 0/1 2/2
Mr. Jim Yiu Ming ERRIEE A 0/1 0/2
Mr. Shen Ruolei BB STE 1/1 1/1
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy BRI S5 A 11 2/2

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, all independent non- RIFEMEEE AR 2 FAHESCEABTIE
executive directors and non-executive directors should attend general FIEBYIERITESRIIENTESE LT L
meetings of listed issuers. Mr. Jim Yiu Ming and Mr. Cheung Siu M ETAKBRR AL « BUIFERITESER
Wah, Independent Non-executive Directors, were unable to attend B AERKDELEREAFTERELEER
the annual general meeting held on 3 May 2016 due to his personal 201655 H3HZEITHRERAF RS -
commitments.

Annual Report 2016 FR




e XFEFEFEER LT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Remuneration Committee

From 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee comprised three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheung Siu Wah, Mr. Jim Yiu Ming and Mr. Sit Sai Hung,
Billy. Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for the Directors and senior management remuneration,
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Director and ensuring that no Director or any of
his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration. Specific
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are published on
the websites of the Company and the Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year to
review the remuneration package of the Directors.

Audit Committee

From 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee
comprised three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Cheung Siu Wah, Mr. Jim Yiu Ming and Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy. Mr.
Sit Sai Hung, Billy as the Chairman of the Audit Committee, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience as required
by the GEM Listing Rules. Specific terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are published on the websites of the Company and the
Exchange. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

(@)  monitor and ensure a proper relationship with the Company’s
auditors;

(b)  review of the Group’s quarterly, interim and annual reports and

compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules,

and legal requirements before submission to the Board; and

(c) oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the Year, to review
the Group’s quarterly, interim and annual financial statements, to
meet and discuss with the external auditors about audit findings, and
discuss with the Board about re-appointment of the external auditor
and the progress of internal control review performed by an external
advisor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of
the Group for the Year and recommended to the Board the approval
and announcement of such financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

From 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee comprised four Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheung Siu Wah, Mr. Jim Yiu Ming, Mr. Sit Sai Hung,
Billy and Mr. Shen Ruolei. Mr. Jim Yiu Ming as the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee. On 4 February 2016, Mr. Shen Ruolei
was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director and
the member of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to review the size, structure and
composition of the Board, identify suitably qualified individual for
appointment to the Board, assess the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and
succession planning for the Directors. The Nomination Committee
is also responsible for ensuring the Board comprises diversity of
perspectives appropriate for the Company’s healthy development.
The Nomination Committee considered that the Board has sufficient
diverse expertise, particularly in corporate management, financial
control, business development and human resources management,
for the Company’s business, while gender diversity is not directly
relevant to the quality of the Board. Specific terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are published on the websites of the Company
and the Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year to
review the composition of the Board and the suitability of the Directors
proposed for re-appointment at the Company’s annual general
meeting.

Company Secretary

Any Executive Director of the Company will be the person to whom
such external service provider can contact with. The Company
appointed Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley (“Ms. Hui”) as the company
secretary of the Company from an external secretarial services
provider. In accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms.
Hui confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the Year.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2016, fees for audit and non-audit
services paid/payable to the auditors of the Company amounted to
HK$599,000 and HK$168,000 respectively. The non-audit services
included professional services rendered for interim review, tax
compliance and investment circular.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated with
any activity, function or process within its scope of responsibility and
authority.

The Group has conducted a review of the implemented system
and procedures, including areas covering financial, operational,
compliance and risk management functions. The systems are
implemented to minimise the risk to which the Group is exposed
and is used as a management tool for the day-to-day operation of
business. The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit function as the Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company and is currently of the view that there is no immediate need
to set up an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. The situation will be
reviewed from time to time.

The Group has engaged Infinity Assurance Limited, external
professional consultant, to conduct independent internal control
review for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the review is
completed as at the date of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board considered the
Group’s internal control system as adequate and effective and that
the Company has complied with the code provisions on internal
control of the Code.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the Group’s financial statements that give a true and fair view.
The responsibility of auditors in respect of the Group’s financial
statements are set out in the independent auditors’ report forming
part of this annual report.

B b E R R P BB B
EremRAHEFEMRRASERAREE R
NEBEIERRIT 2B

R EREFRERRER - BRFE &
REE AR ERZES REE -

EEEEZRNEEETRENBEARNFZR -
oA AR Y B R EEEEAE
B BSSIEFBRRER

AEBEHRCBERNRGNEFETIE
HESENE 2E ARKAREER
E-ERAAEEKAKEEBRHRRES
RE UBEARXBEENEETA - %
EpERHAEMFRYFRENELHIRGE
MR RIAK -

AEELENBBEDE - FEGCRIAAK
AARNBERREZHA - BARBEER
EEEHOME - E BRI BADE
WA B ST OB RN o SR IE T
B THRE o

REBREE2016F12A31BILFECER
SNEEXERERSHTMEBRAERAR
ETRYANTEEERN  BEEHNRAANFER
HHIE K -

HE2016F12A31HILFE  E=28RANK
EENANTEREZGBREAREN  BARQ
AIDESTTRINA A R <P RIS o

MRS iR
EFEANEMMBRARRASENMHR
&K NEBERAFHRBREBARR - ZBE
RERAKRENBRENETHRAFREY
B AZBEN IR E A o

Annual Report 2016 FR

24



25

Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Communication with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy to
maintain an on-going dialogue with its shareholders and investors in
a timely, open and transparent manner. The Board reviews the policy
on a regular basis to ensure effective communication between the
Company, its shareholders and investors.

The Board communicates with its shareholders and investors through
various channels. The Board members meet and communicate with
shareholders and investors at annual general meetings and other
general meetings. Corporate communications (such as quarterly,
interim and annual reports, notices, circulars and announcements)
are sent to shareholders in a timely manner and are available on the
websites of the Company and the Exchange.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director and Convene a Special General Meeting
According to Bye-law 85 of the Company’s Bye-laws, a shareholder
of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at an annual general meeting of the Company
may propose a person for election as a director at such meeting by
lodging a notice in writing signed by such shareholder of his intention
to propose such person for election and a notice in writing signed by
the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected at the head
office of the Company or the office of the Hong Kong branch share
registrar of the Company provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notices are given, shall be at least seven
days and that (if the notices are submitted after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the period
for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting.

Other than election at annual general meetings, pursuant to Bye-law
58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition, including election of directors, and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Fei Jie (&78), aged 37, appointed as an Executive Director on 2
September 2014 and appointed as the Chairman of the Board on 22
September 2014. He has over 11 years of experience in management
level positions from deputy manager to chairman of the board in
several companies located in Zhejiang province, the PRC, two of
which are mining related companies.

Fung Chi Kin (F7E2), aged 67, appointed as an Executive Director
on 22 September 2014. Mr. Fung is also a director of a number of
the Company’s subsidiaries. He is the Honorary Permanent President
of The Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society, the International
Advisor of Shanghai Gold Exchange and Director of Fung Chi Kin
Consulting Limited. Mr. Fung has over 31 years of experience in
banking and finance. Prior to his retirement, he was the Director
and Deputy General Manager of Po Sang Bank Limited (merged into
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited in 2001), Managing Director of
BOCI Securities Limited and Chief Administration Officer of BOC
International Holdings Limited. From October 1998 to June 2000, Mr.
Fung served as a Council Member of the First Legislative Council of
the HKSAR. He also held offices in various public organisations and
was the Vice Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
Director of the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Director of
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited and Hong Kong
Affairs Advisor. Mr. Fung has been an independent non-executive
director of Chaoda Modern Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
682) since 2003 and was an independent non-executive director of
New Times Energy Corporation Limited (stock code: 166) from 2006
to 2012.
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Ng Chin Ming Stephen ({fERBH), aged 61, Mr. Ng joined the
Company on 19 October 2016 as Chief Operating Officer and was
appointed as an executive director and Chief Executive Officer on
10 March 2017. Mr. Ng has over 35 years of experience in senior
management of both public and private organisations including 22
years in Government in various departments and policy bureaux as
an Administrative Officer, and 13 years in various capacities such
as Chief Executive Officer of Treasury Markets Association and
Global Governor of the Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society.
Educated in Wah Yan College, Kowloon, Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor
Degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a Master’s
Degree from the University of Hong Kong. He was also sent by Hong
Kong Government for further studies in Oxford University in U.K.,
and Tsinghua University in Beijing. Mr. Ng also served in Hong Kong
Economic and Trade Office in New York representing Hong Kong in
1988. From 1995 to 1997, he was seconded to Hong Kong Monetary
Authority responsible for the 1997 World Bank/IMF Meetings in Hong
Kong and later in 2000 he was appointed as Associate Director-
General of Invest Hong Kong taking charge of attracting foreign
investment into Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. Ng had worked as a
member of the senior management in the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Urban Renewal Authority.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Siu Wah (3R #), aged 51, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
on 22 September 2014. He is the Associate Member of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, obtained the Honours
Diploma of Company Secretary and Administration at Lingnan College
in 1991. Mr. Cheung held senior management positions in various
multinational companies and has been working in the management,
finance, accounting and administration sectors for over 25 years.

Jim Yiu Ming (E#8d), aged 50, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee on 22 September 2014. Mr. Jim is a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong and is the founding partner of Jim & Co., Solicitors. He
obtained the Degree of Bachelor of Laws at The University of Hong
Kong in 1989 and completed the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws at
The University of Hong Kong in 1991.
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Shen Ruo Lei (£ &E), aged 71, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of the Nomination Committee on 4
February 2016. Mr. Shen, a graduate of School of Finance at Central
University of Finance and Economics, is a senior economist. He has
been a manager, deputy division chief and deputy governor of the
People’s Bank of China (Zhejiang Branch). From April 1984 to June
1992, he was Deputy Governor of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China (Zhejiang Branch) and President of Hangzhou Financial
Management Cadres College of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China. From June 1992 to June 1997, he was Governor of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Shanghai Municipal Branch) cum
Chairman of Shanghai Shenyin Securities Co., Ltd., Chairman of
International Bank of Paris and Shanghai, Chairman of the Second
Session of Shanghai Banking Association, Vice President of Shanghai
Finance Association, and President of Shanghai Urban Financial
Society. From June 1997 to April 2013, he was Vice-Chairman of
Shanghai International Trust & Investment Co., Ltd., Chairman of
China United MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd., General Manager cum
Chairman of Shanghai United International Investment Ltd. (FREE
B2 & & A 7)), Director of Shanghai Commercial Bank, and Director
of Bank of Shanghai. From June 2013 to present, Mr. Shen is
Chairman cum President of Shanghai Zhan Zheng Equity Investment
Fund Management Co., Ltd. (BB IEREREESEEGRAF),
Independent Non-executive Director of Huajun Holdings Limited
(listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, Stock
Code: 377), Consultant of the Government of Zhoushan New Area
in Zhejiang. In addition, Mr. Shen is a part-time professor at various
universities including Jiaotong University, Central University of Finance
and Economics, and Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.
He is Consultant and Vice-President of Alumni Association of Central
University of Finance and Economics. He has been a member of the
8th and 9th Session of Shanghai Political Consultative Conference.

Sit Sai Hung, Billy (E¥itt#), aged 60, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairman of each of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee on 22 September 2014. He obtained the Degree of
Bachelor of Social Science at The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1981, the Diploma in Surveying at The College of Estate Management
in 1996 and the Degree of Master of Law at The University of Beijing
in 2002. Mr. Sit also completed the Merchant Bank Program at the
School of Business Administration of The University of Washington in
1994. Mr. Sit has been working in the banking and financial related
sector for more than 31 years.
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding in shares.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 48 to 49.

No special dividend was paid during the Year (2015: nil). The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year
(2015: nil).

Business Review
The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the section
headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 4 to 6 of this report.

Environmental, Social and Governance

Further discussion on the Group’s environmental policy and our
relationship with various stakeholders are covered by a separate
ESG Report which will be available at the Group’s website under the
“Corporate Social Responsibility” section and the website of the Stock
Exchange before June 2017.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated and also continues to improve, regularly review and
update its policies on remuneration, benefits, occupational health and
safety. The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers
and suppliers. The Group carries out effective communication with
customers, with an aim to provide better services for the customers.
The Group cooperates with its suppliers to achieve the synergetic
effects.

Distributable Reserves

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2016,
amounted to HK$119,588,000 (2015: $84,155,000). In addition, the
Company’s share premium account may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 52 to 53 and note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The approximate percentages in respect of the Group’s sales
and purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the financial year are as follows:

The largest customer BRAEP

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFPAR
The largest supplier =AM ER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAREEEAF

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major customers and suppliers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fei Jie, Chairman

Mr. Fung Chi Kin

Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on 10 March 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Siu Wah

Mr. Jim Yiu Ming

Mr. Shen Ruolei

Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs. Jim Yiu Ming,
Sit Sai Hung, Billy and Ng Chin Ming Stephen shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Messrs. Fung Chi Kin and Cheung Siu Wah shall
retire at the conclusion of the AGM to be held on 8 May 2017 and shall
not offer themselves for re-election. Upon Mr. Chenug retirement,
he will also cease to be a member of the Remuneration Committee,
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. The Board
would like to take this opportunity to express its appreciation for their
valuable contribution to the Company during their tenure.
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Remuneration Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
the Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set
out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” under Directors’
Report of this annual report.

Remuneration of Directors, Senior Management and Five
Individuals with Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with
highest emoluments are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Senior Management’s Remuneration
The remuneration paid to each of the senior management for the Year
fell within the following bands:

A S
AEBRENMEBRI2EHFHEZE SN
HBRRRIZERE BERBENMAIIL

ARREENHE N2 EFHEZEGNHEE

REEVRBAAFNEERE  AAXRRK
ALEmERBEMEE
ARBIERABERETS  FRHEESERA

BEREENER - FENFBRERAFER
SEEEMEAT [BRETE 4 -

B SREEBEAERLER
TaIFREN
EREERIERSME ATHHMFESR
KA BERAM 13

1PN

BREEASZIME
ilﬁ ENEaREEABZMEBRNIAT
#E

Number of individuals

AE

2016 2015
20164 20154
Nil — HK$499,999 E3£499,999/% 7T 3 -
HK$500,000 — HK$1,000,000 500,000/ T2 1,000,000/ 7T - 1

Directors’ Interests in Contracts EEREYNER
Save as disclosed in the section “Material Related Party Transactions” BRAFEERE [EABEEA TS | —8 N4
of this annual report and in note 30 to the consolidated financial A& B BRI FI0ATHEEIN - NEKRNE

statements, no other contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors, the management
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which
causes or may cause a significant competition with the business of
the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such person
has or may have with the Group.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Mr. Fei Jie, Executive Director, had entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of one year from 2 September 2014 and
is subject to retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws. Under
the service contract, Mr. Fei receives a monthly remuneration of
HK$100,000.

Mr. Fung Chi Kin, Executive Director, had entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of one year from 22 September
2014 and is subject to retirement and not offer himself for re-election
at annual general meeting in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s Bye-laws. Under the service contract, Mr. Fung receives a
monthly remuneration of HK$150,000.

Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, Executive Director, had entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of one year from 10
March 2017 and is subject to retirement and re-election at annual
general meeting in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
Bye-laws. Under the service contract, Mr. Ng receives a monthly
remuneration of HK$100,000 and the service contract can be
terminated by either party by giving not less than one month’s prior
written notice to the other party.

Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy, Independent Non-executive Director, had
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
one year from 22 September 2014 and is subject to retirement and re-
election at annual general meeting in accordance with the provisions
of the Company’s Bye-laws. Under the letter of appointment, Mr.
Sit receives a monthly remuneration of HK$25,000 and the letter of
appointment can be terminated by either party by giving not less than
three months’ prior written notice to the other party.
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Mr. Cheung Siu Wah, Independent Non-executive Director, had
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of one year from 22 September 2014 and is subject to retirement
and not offer himself for re-election at annual general meeting
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws.
Under the letter of appointment, Mr. Cheung receives a monthly
remuneration of HK$20,000 and the letter of appointment can be
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice to the other party.

Mr. Jim Yiu Ming, Independent Non-executive Director, had entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one
year from 22 September 2014 and is subject to retirement and re-
election at annual general meeting in accordance with the provisions
of the Company’s Bye-laws. Under the letter of appointment, Mr.
Jim receives a monthly remuneration of HK$20,000 and the letter of
appointment can be terminated by either party by giving not less than
three months’ prior written notice to the other party.

Mr. Shen Ruolei, Independent Non-executive Director, had entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year
from 4 February 2016 and is subject to retirement and re-election
at annual general meeting in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s Bye-laws. Under the letter of appointment, Mr. Shen
receives a monthly remuneration of HK$20,000 and the letter of
appointment can be terminated by either party by giving not less than
three months’ prior written notice to the other party.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors in the share
capital of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) (including
interests which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company and the Exchange were as follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company REATRGEFE
(a) Interest in the shares of the Company (a) RAREIR IR

Approximate percentage

(b)

Capacity/ Number of issued of the issued share capital
Director Nature of interest ordinary shares held of the Company
BE B ERnE FIRERTEERYME EXRATFSHITRAVBOEIEL
Mr. Fei Jie Corporate interest (Note) 781,950,000 38.12%
BAREAE NAVER (H1aF)

Note: These shares are held by an associated corporation King Full Inc Limited.
Directors’ interests in an associated corporation are as disclosed
immediately below.

Interest in the shares of an associated corporation
Name of associated corporation: King Full Inc Limited

Bret - ZERDBEBEEREBERIFNE - &

EREBEB RN T XKE ©

P EBR (0 A e

HEEAE R - RRERAF

Approximate percentage

Capacity/ Number of issued of the issued share capital
Director Nature of interest ordinary shares held of the Company
BEE S, HERtE FIBERTEEARYEE HAATCEBTHREMNBNEIL
Mr. Fei Jie Beneficial owner 5,000,000 100%
BAREAE EnEBA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the & F XTI EEEIN 0 R2016412 A 31

Directors or any chief executive of the Company had an interest
or short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which was required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or pursuant
to the Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified
to the Company and the Exchange.

B ARARMESHEMNESTHRAE
BMERAA AR EAREEE(EER
BE LG EHFEXVE) BEMAG
RO ELFTFHEBREZFRHE
WRBIEXVERE 7 RESH WM BHE AR
AR RS AR (BIERIEF
HREE GO ARG EEWE ESR
REBHBERAE)  HBEBEEHFR
HA B {5 10 56 352 16 78 50 8% A 5Z G BT il &
MAEESAR - SIRBAIZER LT
HFAIES.48E5.67 A& ANQ A KBk
RETHIESSOAR ©

Annual Report 2016 FR

34



Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited & AZ¥&EBER A T

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the

Company.

Long Positions

Ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company

FEGHE

FERFNRM R
R2016F12A31H * ARRIREFESFRKBE
BHIEIHREENEERRELMET - K
EXFBEBEEEETESNRERIN - UTR
REBAMARTRARAND BITRA S #
BrEfRER -

50
A2 FE BB R AGRR 0

Approximate percentage

Name of Capacity/ Number of issued of the issued share capital
shareholders Nature of interest ordinary shares held of the Company
[ B ERE e TTERME ERATERTRAMBOT L
King Full Inc Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 781,950,000 38.12%
BESARAR EnmAANMZ)

Mr. Fei Jie Corporate interest (Note 2) 781,950,000 38.12%
BEALE DA (fra2)

Ms. Wu Wen Interest in spouse (Note 2) 781,950,000 38.12%
RELTL RE B S (ff2)

Top Bliss Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3) 517,709,327 25.24%
ERERERRA EnlB AME3)

Mr. Zhang Genjiang Corporate interest (Note 3) 517,709,327 25.24%
ERIEE NEliE=(HiE3)

Notes: Hitat -

1. The entire issued share capital of King Full Inc Limited is wholly and beneficially 1. EEERAGTNEHCHITRABERNEELELZER

owned by Mr. Fei Jie. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Fei Jie is deemed to be interested

in the entire 781,950,000 shares held by King Full Inc Limited.

2. The shares are held by King Full Inc Limited, the entire issued share capital of 2.
which is owned by Mr. Fei Jie, the spouse of Ms. Wu Wen. Accordingly, Ms. Wu
Wen is deemed to be interested in the entire 781,950,000 shares by virtue of the

SFO.

3. The entire issued share capital of Top Bliss Holdings Limited is wholly and 3.
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhang Genjiang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Zhang
Genjiang is deemed to be interested in the entire 517,709,327 shares held by Top

Bliss Holdings Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no other persons
had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the
Company.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme which has become
effective on 22 December 2010 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

On 27 May 2015 (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted share
options (the “Share Options”) to the eligible persons within the Group
(the “Grantees”) pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme
launched on 22 December 2010, subject to acceptance by the
Grantees. The Share Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe for a
total of 15,000,000 ordinary shares with nominal value of HK$0.10
each (the “Shares”) in the capital of the Company upon the exercise
of the Share Options in full. The exercise price of the Share Options
granted of HK$1.17 per Share represent the highest of (i) the closing
price of HK$1.17 per Share on the Date of Grant; (ii) the average
closing price of HK$1.04 per Share for the five business days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
HK$0.10 per Share. Details of the Grant of Share Options was set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 27 May 2015. 7,500,000
options had been exercised and gross proceeds of HK$8,775,000
was received from exercise of these options. Upon the Share
Subdivision became effective on 4 May 2016, the exercise price and
the number of outstanding options were adjusted to HK$0.234 and
37,500,000 options respectively in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2016, no
option was lapsed and there were 37,500,000 options outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Save as the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time
during the Year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

Connected and Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group has not entered into any significant
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which
should be disclosed pursuant to the requirement under the GEM
Listing Rules.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this report, based on information publicly available
to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float.

Corporate Governance
A report on the corporate governance code adopted by the Company
is set out on pages 17 to 25 of this annual report.

Environmental, Social and Governance

Further discussion on the Group’s environmental policy and our
relationship with various stakeholders are covered by a separate
ESG Report which will be available at the Group’s website under the
“Corporate Social Responsibility” section and the website of the Stock
Exchange before June 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Auditors

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditors of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Subsequent Events

On 6 February 2017, the Company signed another supplemental
loan agreement to further extend the repayment date of a loan of
HK$15,000,000 secured by the shares of Powerwell Pacific Limited to
another 12 months from the first extended repayment date.

On 10 March 2017, the Company appointed Mr. Ng Chin Ming
Stephen (“Mr. Ng”) as an executive director and Chief Executive
Officer.

Mr. Ng has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of one year from 10 March 2017 and is subject to retirement
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Bye-Laws. Under the service
contract, Mr. Ng was entitled to receive an annual remuneration
of HK$1,200,000 which has been reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee and determined by the Board with reference to his
experience, duties and the prevailing market conditions, as well as the
remuneration policy in the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Fei Jie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT

BT 2t 60 F % 0 A R E

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF POWERWELL PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Powerwell
Pacific Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 153,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Zig X FEEEHFR AT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

KEY AUDIT MATTERS FAEEsTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional iRIEFR MM E L E - BRESEHE SR
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 201612 A1 B RBE% A IFEEH
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December #ZAEMBHREIPTHZEEMNEFIE - BMEET
2016. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 4RAMBEHRRMRHERSRERIELSS
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 18 - MA@ LS HHEHEBFHERER, o
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.
Key audit matters How our audit addressed the Key audit matter
FAsEELTEIE B TEZN (T EEREETSIE

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
interest in leasehold land through the issuance of
convertible bonds and the impairment assessment
of the acquired property, plant and equipment and
interest in leasehold land

BB TURREFKBEYF  BERZELURBEELHE
8 LEETHEERI ¥ « BERZHLUREEL LR
BT

Refer to notes 4, 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
Statements respectively
B FIZEARAE B HRENE4 - 15616

At 31 December 2016, property, plant and equipment and  Our audit procedures in relation to the acquisition of the
interest in leasehold of the Group with aggregate amount  Sale Assets through issuance of convertible bonds and
of approximately HK$114,885,000, which is approximately  the impairment assessment of Sale Assets including:
29% of the Group’s total assets. EMEEERBTIRBRESFNEBESEEEREGESR
M2016%12HA318 » EEEYE  BELRREUREE ERRBETGNSIETFEE:

M EREL /114,885,000 - 4 BESREBEEN

29% - = Evaluating of the independent professional
valuers’ competence, capabilities and
objectivities;

- AHMEBUBEMGEMNER - e RFBIL
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

PSRBT EIE

PSSt IR (E)

How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

BIETERRINAEEMARETER

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
interest in leasehold land through the issuance of
convertible bonds and the impairment assessment
of the acquired property, plant and equipment and
interest in leasehold land (Continued)
FBETURREFKIEYR BERZGURHEELHE
8 LEETWEEIHE BERZHLUREEL MR
TS ()

Refer to notes 4, 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively (Continued)
B FNBBFE R ENF4 - 16K 16(4&)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had
completed the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
and interest in leasehold land (collectively referred to
as the “Sale Assets”) with the amount of approximately
HK$98,806,000 and HK$21,362,000 respectively, through
the issuance of convertible bonds with the principal amount
of HK$110,000,000 as consideration.
BE2016F12A31BLEFE - BEXEEERETLAEH
110,000,000 T H) AT R B HFERR BT KRB X - K
BEREFEFHEAREE T ES (BEA [FEEE] ) @ 88
7 Rl #) /98,806,000 7T 221,362,000/ 7T °
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Obtaining an understanding on the valuation
methodologies, significant assumptions adopted,
critical judgement on key inputs and data used in
the valuation;

TREERE - IERANERRRARERAGER
AR E B ABIRRNE A A

Assessing the fairness and appropriateness of the
source of information used;

AHEPTE A E MR AT REE M

Challenging the methodologies and the significant
assumptions adopted by the independent
professional valuer;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

PSRBT EIE

PSSt EIE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

BIETERRINAEEMARETER

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
interest in leasehold land through the issuance of
convertible bonds and the impairment assessment
of the acquired property, plant and equipment and
interest in leasehold land (Continued)
FBETURREFKIEYR BERZGURHEELHE
8 LEETWEEIHE BERZHLUREEL MR
TS ()

Refer to notes 4, 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively (Continued)
B FNBBFE R ENF4 - 16K 16(4&)

The acquired Sale Assets mainly comprise plant and
machinery and land and buildings which are allocated to
electric vehicle business cash-generating unit (“CGU”).
Management is required to carry out an impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and
interest in leasehold land whenever events or change in
circumstances indicates that the related carrying amounts
may be impaired with reference to profitability of the CGU.
BN GEEET ERRIREEHEERREELE
(TREEEEMDOKE - #2E - L REF - HIERE
BREREBRA  FRREENEERRESELEBCAA
BEMERE - BREANYE BMEMRREBEARBE L R
FRIBE R i

In determining the recoverable amount of these property,
plant and equipment and interest in leasehold land,
significant management judgement is required.
RETEZEME - BE KR E KA E T A e] 4= &
R BETEEEERAL -

- Checking, on a sampling basis, the relevance of
the key inputs and data used; and

- ERREEI2HARBNAIBEEAEREE &

- Discussing with the management on the
impairment indication of the Sale Assets, where
such indicators were identified, assessed whether
management performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs.

- HEEENWREEEENREDNR  EZSZURE
BT AHMEEREREERESEVBRE LN
REFRBRERR -

We determined the key assumptions were supported by
the available evidence.

BPHE - T2RROEEEIT -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FASEEEtE|IE (&)
Key audit matters How our audit addressed the Key audit matter
B et EIE BT EZIF I RIR RS BIE

Impairment of trade receivables

E SR IE R E

Refer to notes 4 and 20 to the consolidated financial

statements
B2 E S HRE M 4520

In determining whether there is objective evidence of Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the  impairment assessment of trade receivables including:
credit history of the customers and the current market FHFIEEEIREEBEHZE 5 EWNKIBFRFEREDNRET HOE

condition which may require management judgement. HIZEFEE
REESEFEREBEENTRERR - BE5EETERE
FREEELRERTR - AT R2ERE M HIE - - Discussing the Group’s procedures on credit

limits and credit period given to customers with
the management;

- HEEENw ESERMTFRRHEERBEIEE
HRRF

- Evaluating the management’s impairment
assessment of trade receivables; and
- MEEEEHEZREKFIEFRERRERNS &

- Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of information included in the
impairment assessment of trade receivables.

-  BEHRREHESHERSERRBEF GRS ER
R KRR -

We consider the management conclusion to be

consistent with the available information.
BMRAERENEREAHER —B -
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. (“Other
Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error;
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks;
and, obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Yu Chi Fat.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practicing Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2016

AR a

cBmMEMEERE
Wz

B ZE20165F12H31 HIFF/E

2016 2015
20164 20154
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BtaF F#ET FET
Revenue PN B 303,268 222,647
Cost of sales SHE KA (203,597) (136,103)
Gross profit EH 99,671 86,544
Other revenue and other income E AU A R E A Y 6 2,550 284
Bargain purchase gain recognised in REBEHPERZ
a business combination mERE e 34 - 4,084
Selling and distribution costs SHE R o SHAR (3,034) (5,008)
Administrative expenses THHAX (53,867) (51,442
Loss arising in fair value change of contingent &Ik AR (B A F(EE:
consideration receivables MEEZEE 19 (1,275) (12,154)
Other operating expenses HEmg s (8) (633)
Finance costs BhE R AN 8 (4,957) (811)
Profit before income tax W BT 45 5 A s A1) 9 39,080 20,864
Income tax expense FRiSHi R 10 (14,819) (11,798)
Profit for the year FE R 24,261 9,066
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wz
Items that may be reclassified HEGEH S HEEERZ
subsequently to profit or loss: IEH :
Exchange differences arising on translation — S RTEGINER E 4 2
of foreign operations during the year MEHER (14,533) (2,264)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FEREMEEEE (14,533) (2,264)
Total comprehensive income for the year R ZEWZEEEE 9,728 6,802
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Notes

Htat

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:  fERE{LEF(EE) :

2016

20164
HK$°000

FET

2015

20154
HK$’000
FET

Owners of the Company RARER A 10,328 (1,664)
Non-controlling interests JEPERR RE RS 13,933 10,730
24,261 9,066
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ENEEEE(EBE)
for the year attributable to: WS sazs
Owners of the Company FiN/NEIE/ Z=N (2,312) (3,006)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR = 12,040 9,808
9,728 6,802
Earnings/(loss) per share sSKREH (&E)
(restated)
(rZE5))
Basic E- ¥ 12 HK0.67 centsi#{ll  HK(0.14) cents& L
Diluted e 12 HK0.65 centsi#{ll HK(0.14) cents/& L

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  BEMTHTsEEA X E 455 B MEB BB IS ©

financial statements.
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e XFEFEFEER LT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF #r&BIfAR R

FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31 December 2016

Notes
Kzt
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment L E RN 15
Interest in leasehold land FAE L HhAERS 16
Contingent consideration receivables FEU SRR (B 19
Prepayments for property, plant and M MEREZEZ
equipment TE S FRIE
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 17
Current assets REIEE
Inventories ZzE 18
Contingent consideration receivables FEU SRR (B 19
Trade receivables B 5 E I 20
Deposits, prepayments and other %4 - BNRIER
receivables i JE U 2hTE 21
Amount due from a related company FEUG — R RE:E N R IB 22
Cash and cash equivalents RENBEESEEY 23
Current liabilities REBE
Trade and other payables B 5 & EMENRIE 24
Secured loan BHEFER 25
Amount due to a shareholder FE —ZRE R A R IE 22
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FE S IR AR RE 25 A 22
Amounts due to related companies FE T REE A Rl ZIE 22
Tax payables FEAF R 3R
Net current assets REEE R
Total assets less current liabilities Pl =K

R2016%F12H31H

2016
2016%E
HK$’000
Fi#T

2015
20154

HK$’000

T87T

94,942 6,351
19,943 =
- 2,982

625 -
9,000 9,000
124,510 18,333
46,175 16,480
7,107 5,400
72,706 23,719
24,451 14,831
126 -
127,722 145,700
278,287 206,130
53,992 32,325
15,000 15,000
5,438 5,438
105 225
9,592 =
11,212 9,274
95,339 62,262
182,948 143,868
307,458 162,201
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2016 2015
20164 20154
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Kzt FET T
Non-current liabilities ERETEE
Convertible bonds A HARR (& & 26 47,781 =
Deferred tax liability EERIBEE 27 1,679 =
49,460 =
Net assets BERHE 257,998 162,201
Capital and reserves BANEE
Share capital A% 7K 28 41,024 30,670
Reserves HiE 185,288 111,885
Equity attributable to owners of the AATETAE(GHES
Company 226,312 142,555
Non-controlling interests JEI R HESS 31,686 19,646
Total equity (EEESS 257,998 162,201

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised % Z 44 MR ERNR2017EIH2THEES
for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2017 and signed on  @#l /& RFEET|ZE - WA FIESRKEREE
its behalf by:

Fei Jie Fung Chi Kin
Bmx BER

Director Director
2 EF

4

RAMBHRROARED o

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated &I Bt £ 5K 5%
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF #r&#EmE sk
CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2016 BL220169F12H31 H IEF/E
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
FATRAARHES
Share- Retained
based Capital Convertible  earnings/ Non-
Share Share Capital Merger ~ payment Translation ~contribution bonds  (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests equity
HRfE
3 PAE &k RERR/

hd  RBER EARE  AHER i BERE ERE  RHRE (RHBR) BF  FEREh a5
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T FAT T FAT AT FAT AT FET FET FET AT T
(Note &) (Note ) (Note c) (Note d) (Note ¢) (Note f) (Note g)
(Bita)  (Wib)  (Wie) (Wit ( Wiite) (W) (Kig)

At1 January 2015 Ro015%1 818 15,000 6,097 15 1,033 - - - - 1082 24177 - um
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(ER) /) = - - - - - - - (1,664) (1664 10,730 9,066

Other comprehensive income: A2 EME -
Exchange diferences arising ~ ERHEENE
BEEZ

on translation of foreign
operations during the year BHER = = - - - (1,342) - - - (1,342) (929) (2,264)

Total comprehensive (oss)/ FR2E(EE)/

income for the year enratd - = = - - (1,342) - - (1,664) (3,006) 9,808 6,802
Issuance of new sharesupon  AFRERELT

open offer R 8,800 52,800 - - - - - - - 61,600 - 61,600
Issuance of consideration shares %17 ER{H 2,600 20,540 - - - - - - - 23,140 - 23,140
Placement of new shares REFR 3,520 22,000 - - - - - - - 25,520 - 25,520
Exercise of share options frieiEmE 750 10,590 = = (2,565 = = = = 8,775 = 8,775
Non-controling interests RhEHEAR

arising from acquisition of EE2EER

subsicliaries Ex - - - - - - - - - - 9,838 9838
Recognition of BARBLEEN

equity-settled AR

share-based payments ﬁ = = = = 5,130 = = = = 5,130 = 5130
Share issuing expenses %ﬂfii - [2,781) - - - - - - - 2,781) - (2,781)
At 31 December 2015 and 2015512

at 1 Janvary 2016 318 R20165

1A1AR 30,670 110,086 155 1,038 2,565 (1,342) - - (612) 142,555 19,646 162,201

Profit for the year EREH - - - = - - = - 10,328 10,328 13,933 24,261

Other comprehensive income: ~~ E A 2 E i -
Exchange differences arising ~~ £R#TEEsE
on translation of foreign BEEL

operations during the year EXZE - - - - - (12,640) - - - (12,640) (1,893 (14,533
Total comprenensive (1oss)/ ERZA(EE)/
income for the year hsen - - = - = (12,640) - - 10,328 (2,312) 12,040 9,728

Recognition of equity component B2 4R 40

of convertible bonds Eadh - - - - - = = 25,276 = 25,276 = 25,276
Gapital contribution i = = - - - - 12,144 - - 12,144 - 12,144
Deferred tax on convertiole MakEAHET

bonds (note 27) RB(WH27) = = = = = = = ,170) - .170) - 170
Conversion of convertible BHIARES

bonds 10,354 53,900 - - - - - (13,086) - 51,168 - 51,168
Released of deferred tax RBATAR

upon conversion of EERER

convertible bonds (note 27) BIERE

(Hiter) - - - - - - - 1822 - 1822 - 1822
Share Issuing expenses BUEGESS = (17) = = - - - - - (17) - (17)
At 31 December 2016 R2016E12R318 41,024 163,815 155 1,033 2,565 (13,982) 12,144 9,842 9,716 226,312 31,686 257,998
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Notes:

(o)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the share premium of
the Company can be used in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares.

Capital reserve arose from acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries from
non-controlling interests. It represents the difference between the consideration
paid and the net assets of the relevant companies shared by non-controlling
interests.

To rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares, the Group undergone a group restructuring which became
effective on 20 December 2010 (the “Reorganisation”). The financial information
of the Group has been prepared as if the group structure intended under the
Reorganisation had always been exist. In connection to the Reorganisation, merger
reserve arose mainly in respect of the followings:

(i) On 16 June 2010 and 20 June 2010 respectively, the Group’s subsidiary,
Powerwell Pacific Limited (“Powerwell Pacific”), issued 752 new shares of
United States Dollar (“USD”) 1 each to the founding shareholders of the
Group at the consideration of USD1 each and issued 44 new shares of
USD 1 each, representing 5.5% of the enlarged share capital of Powerwell
Pacific, to a party who was then a non-controlling shareholder of Powerwell
Pacific at a consideration of HK$1,027,000. These have resulted in an
increase in equity of the Group by HK$1,033,000 which was included in
merger reserve; and

(if) The difference between the nominal value of the aggregate share capital of
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation over the nominal value
of the shares of the Company issued in exchange for the subsidiaries.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of services estimated to be
received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options over the relevant
vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair value of the share options at
grant date. The amount for each period is determined by spreading the fair value
of the share options over the relevant vesting period (if any) and is recognised as
staff costs and related expenses with a corresponding increase in the share-based
payment reserve.

Translation reserve represents exchange differences relating to the translation of
the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their functional currencies to
the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar (“‘HK$")) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation reserve.
Such exchange differences accumulated in the exchange reserve are reclassified
to retained earnings/(accumulated losses) on the disposal of the foreign
operations.

Capital contribution reserve represents the contribution of inventories from
shareholder to the Group.

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation, convertible bonds issued are split into their liability and equity
components at initial recognition by recognising the liability component at its fair
value which is determined using a market interest rate for similar non-convertible
debts and attributing to the equity component the difference between the fair value
of the goods received and the fair value of the liability component. The liability
component is subsequently carried at amortised cost. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible bonds reserve until the convertible bonds are either
converted (in which case it is transferred to share premium) or redeemed (in which
case it is released directly to retained earnings/(accumulated losses)).
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e XFEFEFEER LT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2016

nﬂ'\/\iﬁi//lbiig

B ZE20165F12H31 HIFF/E

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade receivables
Bargain purchase gain recognised
in a business combination
Loss arising in fair value change of
contingent consideration receivables
Share-based payment expenses
Bank interest income
Written-off of property, plant and
equipment
Write-down of obsolete inventories

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Increase in amount due from
a related company

Increase/(decrease) in trade and
other payables

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to
non-controlling interests

Increase in amounts due to
related companies

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Investment in available-for-sale
financial assets

Net proceeds from acquisition of
subsidiaries

Interest received

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

TLERERBHBRER
BTSSR AR

BB AR

THE 4 2 2 ) B 5

5B 5 R UFOR M R 2 RUEE R
REBAH TR CHEBE RS
ERHARERFEEPELZER

VAR 10 7 21 2 S R X2
RITH S A

BRE TS MR

FEE
BZ WA « ANFERRS

& e — ] B 388 1 ) SR IR HE AN

B 5 R E AR FORE I, O d)
e IR RRIR OR 2>), /18
& {5 B2 1% R SRIAHE AN
EEELNRE

EffHIR

FEEH(MA) EENREFHR

REFHMHRE LR

BEYX  BENIRE
HEME - BEMRIEMSHR

AHEESREEZRE
s B Y /B8 1 ) PR 1S SRRF BR
EWHE
BETH (A EENRSFHE

39,080 20,864
4,957 811
9,039 2,136

272 =

8 633

- (4,084)

1,275 12,154

- 5,130

(264) (244)
112 =
170 =
54,649 37,400
(20,121) (862)
(64,545) (29,639)
(134) =
23,695 (219)
(113) 236

10,213 =

3,644 6,916

(12,747) (5,000)
(9,103) 1,916

(4,322) (2,662)
9 1

- (9,000)

- 16,627

264 239
(4,049) 5,205
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Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from secured loan

Advance from a shareholder

Proceeds from issuance of new shares
upon open offer

Exercise of share option

Proceeds from placement of new shares

Interest paid

Share issuing expenses

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the reporting period

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the reporting period
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KB —RBRERAEK
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B & AR P 1S 5008

ENFE

B EITRX

RUEEEN (FTA) EENREFH

ReRBRSFEMOED) HMNEHE
BREPNHRERREFE Y
[EXZHHNTE
RENKNDEERFLEFEY

2016
20164

HK$°000
FET

- 15,000
- 694

- 61,600

- 8,775

- 25,520

(900) (747)
(171) (2,781)
(1,071) 108,061
(14,223) 115,182
145,700 32,340
(3,755) (1,822)
127,722 145,700




Zig X FEEEHFR AT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2016

1.

GENERAL

Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 14 June 2010 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. King Full Inc Limited and Top Bliss Holdings Limited
are substantial shareholders of the Company. The Company’s
registered office is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The Company’s principal
place of business is located at Units 610-611 Tower Two, Lippo
Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 26 January 2011.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$,
which is also the functional currency of the Company and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except
otherwise indicated.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together
with the Company referred to as the “Group”) are the provision
of sourcing and procurement solutions to customers for
production of watches, costume jewelries, and display and
packaging products (the “Sourcing Business”), the retail and
wholesale of luxury brand silverware and silver utensils in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC Silverware
Business”) and manufacture and sale of rechargeable batteries,
electric vehicles and related products and provision of related
services (the “Electric Vehicle Business”).

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

n\/T\

B RN T

B ZE20165F12H31 HIFF/E

1.

— iR & #
RBERXTFHEEEERAB(ARA])
R2010F6 A 4B EBRERBERR
FEA1981FE R AET MK » —HER
RERAA - BEARARIRERE
BREBRDRIEAARANFEFERR -
N A &) &% $%F F 5E 7 7 Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM
11, Bermuda ° R QA RIME B & 2
MRERECEBIRNBERLE
610-611%F °

RATIHIRD B20115E1 A26 AR EF
BHARSHARAR([BRF]) A%
R(TBIZENR]) T -

HEMBRRIRETEN BRI A
ARBZNEEE - RREEAN - &
BEBHRUERALT N AEERER
ZTFRL(FETT)

ARANEBEBRIREER - AAF
MBARGERARR SBR[ AE
BONEEXHERATFREHAEER
- ANERERRIIEKMNERES
EEBRRATR(ERESERD  »N
hEARAME([HE]) TE R4
ErmEiREERIREEA([PRIRER
BOAREERHEERE - EF)TE
MARERNREHBEBRE((E8E
%)) -

AREMBARNEEXBFIEHRNER
B MEMARMEEST ©
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations (collectively referred to as the “new and
amendments to HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which are effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning from 1 January 2016.
A summary of the new and amendments to HKFRSs applied by
the Group is set out as follows:

R RAEETERUBREE
AI(TEFEMBEREZEA])

AEBRAFEEREATIHEEES
MR E((EAGTMAT ) BEMIT
NAEBBE2016F1 1B EFHREE
ERZ R RAAESETER ~ BRI k2
(RTBAR (] RSB BT Bk E £
8)]) - REBERBOFG REETED
WS REERB BRI T ¢

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

HKFRS 14

Annual Report 2016 £ i

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Method of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Sale of Contribution of Assets
Between and Investor and
its Associates or Joint Venture

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisition of
Interest in Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

BB G ERFE15  HEE
(f&5TA)

EBeHERF 165 BENER
REB AR By zm]
FE38IR(BFTA) BN

EB S ERF 165 BE: £EKE
REA G LR =R
EVALHACCHEN)

ARG AER BB R
275 (18R] &) WA
BB R E LR BAM RS
CCHEN) AEBI20124F
F2014F B H
2 EEB#

BB R E LR & & & L H
FBIOHERBEB NRIA &R
SRS 285% ¥CHZEE
(f&5TA) HESFE

BB R E LR BREEE
E£10% - BEYYE  EREH
WMELEAF12 R AR
BA G LR
EPETACCIEN)

ARG EmE LR WHENE &
ERRLACEHEN) ¥R

2R

BB R E LR EEEIREARE
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Zig X FEEEHFR AT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and financial performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative’

RMFET REETEEMBRER
(T EEMBREREA]) (&

AEBRANFRRATR MEEBTER
B H A ERW R E AR EANFE KB
EFEENTBRR R BERER, %
ERAMBRRABZIBEELERY
%,

RER B EIT R RN T 52 EMIE R
ERZHET RGBT TR B REE

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

HKFRS 16

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle®

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instrument with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases®

A

BB ER T &
ENEACCHIES)

BB ER FARZ I EIEER
F125 (IBFTA) EEFTHE E

ERTEMEER BHEMBHREER
(BETA) 20145 %

2016 A
FRE ks

EBUBREED URMHAEEZ

EPLACCHIFN) NRZ 52
DK==
ERVEMEER BHEMBIHREER
FAFE(ERTA) FOReMT A
HEBI SR E
KB FEASRIREE
AR —HER2

BEUBwELER SmI A2
F9%%

ERTEMEELR KEEEHEBRE
FIORRBEE NGIER =T
FTAERIZE 2857 ZHEZEELE
(BETA) goEE

ERVEMELER KRERRFEHZ
F155% a2

ERTEMEER BHEMBHREER
F155(IEFTA) FE155E K g 8

BEEAHZ
Wz 2 52

ERGEmELEL S

F165%

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with
earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with
earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 2018,

with earlier application permitted.

1 R2017F1 A1 A BBz FEHEE
W WRFFIREER -

2 R2018F1 A1 A B HBz FEHEE
W WRFFIREER -

3 MR2019F1 A1 A BBz FEHEE
W WRFFIREER -

4 Wi FEE 2 BHs ARG 2 FEHRE

5 R2017F 5201841 A1 Bk A& BIA 2 &F
EHEER - T RFREER -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting period. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9 entities may make an
irrecoverable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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e XFEFEFEER LT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at the end of each reporting period to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transaction eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
quantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2016. Application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.
The Group’s available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets, including
those currently stated at cost less impairment, will either be
measured as FVTPL or be designated as FVTOCI (subject to
fulfillment of the designation criteria).

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: ldentify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract(s)

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation
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Zig X FEEEHFR AT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on the amounts
reported as the timing of revenue recognition may be affected/
and the amounts of revenue recognised are subject to variable
consideration constraints, and more disclosures relating to
revenue is required. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
Group perform a detailed review. In addition, the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for remeasurement of lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows
respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and
a related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold land where the Group is
a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the
same line at which the corresponding underlying assets would
be presented if they were owned.
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e XFEFEFEER LT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$4,671,000 as disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of
a lease under HKFRS 16 and hence the Group will recognise
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition,
the application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the financial effect until the directors of the Company
complete a detailed review.

Except as disclosed above, the directors of the Company do not
anticipated that the application of other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and financial performance.
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Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1

3.2

Annual Report 2016 £ i

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a
collective term that includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the HKICPA and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange and by the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Zig X FEEEHFR AT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

EFEETBRME(E)

3.2 GRHEEE)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EEHBRBEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.3 Basis of consolidation 3.3 ZEE#%E

67
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The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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e XFEFEFEER LT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

3.4

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in profit or loss from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Business combinations (Continued)

EFEETBRME(E)

3.4 EBEHE)

69
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At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain recognised in a business
combination.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Business combinations (Continued)

EFEETBRME(E)

3.4 EBEHE)

Non-controlling interests that are presenting ownership
interests and entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting periods and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting periods
in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5

3.6
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Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee
if all three of the following elements are present: power
over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and the ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of the property, plant and
equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional
cost of that asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowing funds during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6

3.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 5% - 33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%

Plant and machinery 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest in leasehold land

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “interest in
leasehold land” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.8
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Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”)
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.9

3.10

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
first-in first-out or weighted average basis as appropriate
and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as cost of sales in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as cost of sales in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is offset against
the cost of sales in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, AFS financial assets
and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included
in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) contingent consideration that may be
paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading, or (iii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as AFS or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial
assets as at FVTPL.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group has right to receive the
dividends established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, deposits paid, other receivables (exclude
trade deposits paid) and cash and cash equivalents) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
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3.10 £ THE(E)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period as
well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent period.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss, if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables
(exclude receipt in advance and trade deposits received),
secured loan, amount due to a shareholder, amounts
due to non-controlling interest and convertible bonds)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are
classified separately as financial liability and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features)
is estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability
that does not have an associated equity component.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition,
the conversion option classified as equity will remain in
equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred
to share premium. Where the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible bond,
the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
retained earnings/(accumulated losses). No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

EHERRRFIAR(E)
BEER AR £ MR &
TRAE(BRES REMEMNK
R(TEREKRIEANE S E IR
E) AEAER BN —2BRX
BRI IR B SR SR K ]
B ER) RRIERBERANE X
REHK A E -

A SR 55
ARBRESNERBIREBEE %R
BFRATALERAERRATARZ
ERBUDBHE A ERES
WA EARE R RE MBS
BEELNETEHE 2 ANRABA
TANGAEE  AIDERERAT
Ao

REBETEH  BEXINAFE
(BREEMRAXNFEBEATETE)
TR ENE SRR
BHABEZAHERE -

DERERNBREERESTA
ERZATFENRARIED 2R
METE - WS REHRMEHEZE
BERDERAR  HEHITEE
HETE o Uhoh - DE AR
B REEEST  EERREE
TERLE - MELBERT - £
PR GRS ERERIRE -
i e B A 0 P R AR (B 25 B B B DR
BT - Qe ST R EHRS
HERERERN(RFEBR) - #
B R E R  BI M - TENIE
RAEREARE °

HBTARBREFARI R ZKA
B RREBESELINEER
BRESED - BESHD AL
RHRAE RN ERR - BEE
MOBRZZBRAFABERD
ZHREME - WK A BESHRA
REBRMNEREEE o




15BR A7 Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10

3.12
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Offsetting financial instrument

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Provisions (Continued)
When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

3.13 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3.14 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services supplied, net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the products are delivered to
customers and title is passed.

Revenue from commission income is recognised upon
certain level of sales is achieved.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.14

3.15
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Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from consultancy services income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Revenue from freight income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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Zig X FEEEHFR AT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.16 Employee benefits

EFEETBRME(E)

3.16 EEEFI

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held
in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred and vested in accordance with
the scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave
the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s
contributions, the amount of forfeited contributions is used
to reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the government of the PRC.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the government of the PRC is to make the
specified contributions under the schemes.

BIKEFIEE
o2 Hl ARS8 ([REE
2 ) kEREEEARRENF B3R
TiiME B B R R ARTS AL AT = A (13K
R R AR o

AEBEREBEFERHIEATRERE
GO SEREEREGDIAEERN
BERUBESE - BESFTE
T—HERHENGE  HEEHS
VERERESREA -

BERESFE - EXREEHE
ZREEBBUA Z5%METEI{EL
R WEEEFAEAFBEKA
30,000 A& LR - AEBAF
SRR ELR T - WAREGT S
GEREERE - WEEBNEE=EA
BEEHR AR EETE - Bz #
FA FREHR A S B A BT AR

AEERHENHBRARE T ER
AT BEBUT AT EM BT RIRIK
BRI EIKE - ZEMBARAR
BEH ST A D L RRARER
FHEISATRRR - BRI EE o
AR BB BB A& B AR IR
MBI A —REDRZFTE
{EHPTZAMHK -

Annual Report 2016 £ i

86



87

Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.16

3.17
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Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payment expenses

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in share-based payment
reserve.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share-based payment
reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings/(accumulated losses).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.17

3.18

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise,except for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to
occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s
interests.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.19

3.20
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Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before income
tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.20 Taxation (Continued)

EFEETBRME(E)

3.20 HIE(E)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.21

3.22
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Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,

is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

3.

TEFE

3.21

3.22

FTBURIE (7)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TEFHBEHEEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.22 Related parties (Continued) 3.22 FAEANL(E)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b) —MEEBMTSE TIEME

conditions applies: (Continued)

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for

- BIEARSEEFRIE : (8)

iy —HEBARS—EBEHN
izM/‘\ jjz/\%ﬂz\ﬁ
(KB —BESQAAE
TR B R RIAEEE QA
REERE)

(i) HEBRAKEHRMAE
—FZTWMREDRE:

vy —HEBARF=7E®
VEETE  MB—F
BAEZFE=-HEBNE

S /NCT I

U

(v) REBREERREMN

the benefit of employees of either the Group or 2 ZETEMREAS
an entity related to the Group; REESHEAEEEH

&
il
?E’E
e
W
il

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) ZEEH@BEMMMALT
person identified in (a); PRl sk R
(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) 7 (a)(i) B Pt A L ¥ 5%
influence over the entity or is a member of the EREEATELBZ
key management personnel of the entity (or of a ER(XZEBHNER
parent of the entity); or AEEETEENKE ;
%

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligation between the Group and
a related party, regardless of whether a price is
charged.

Close family members of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

o

(viiip EfE - —HEBZE
AIKERRI(REEZ
—Ho)AEEXEER
ZEARRHFEERE
ABRRTE ©

BEALXRZIEAKE LR
BALTZENER - RB=X
BEEEY BERstELE
% o

RATHIRAEZES

HERHAETEZIALR
ERALTRENZKENE -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Trade receivables

The aging debt profile of trade receivables is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that the trade receivable balances are
collectible and follow up actions are promptly carried out if the
agreed credit periods have been exceeded. However, from
time to time, the Group may experience delays in collection.
Where recoverability of trade receivable balances are called
into doubts, specific provisions for bad and doubtful debts
are made based on credit status of the customers, the aging
analysis of the trade receivables balances and write-off history.
Certain receivables may be initially identified as collectible, yet
subsequently become uncollectible and result in a subsequent
write-off of the related receivables to profit or loss. Changes in
the collectability of trade receivables for which provisions are not
made could affect our results of operations.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Assessment of economic useful lives of fixed assets

Fixed assets with finite useful lives are depreciated or amortised
over their economic useful lives. The assessment of estimated
useful lives is a matter of judgement based on the experience
of the Group, taking into account factors such as technological
progress, changes in market demand, expected usage and
physical wear and tear. Useful lives are periodically reviewed for
continued appropriateness. Due to long lives of assets, changes
to the estimates used can result in variations in their carrying
amounts.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment and
interest in leasehold land

The Company and its subsidiaries test whether property,
plant and equipment and interest in leasehold land suffered
any impairment whenever an impairment indication exists.
In accordance with note 3.8 to the consolidated financial
statements, an impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge,
that outcomes within the next financial period that are different
from assumptions could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and interest
in leasehold land.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining provision for
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises tax liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
on selling goods of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of change in market condition. The directors of the
Company will re-assess the estimations at the end of each
reporting period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 4. EXSiHHEREHFAEREEREZ
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued) FERRE(E)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) G5 EEREZEERE (&)
Valuation of contingent consideration receivables JEW KA EZ Z1E
As part of the identifiable assets acquired in a business TERRE M RERMEMIMEF R ER
combination as set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial AR FTNE 2 A #AEERN —3D
statements, profit guarantee is valued at fair value at the i MR EE Ty R UE B Bl 2 A B R
acquisition date with the best estimates of the future outcome BéEHzBRER 2 HEMTETH
of the future events. Where the profit guarantee meets the B afRENFCEREEZTE
definition of a financial asset, it is subsequently re-measured to BIEREREREAREFTFEEAF
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The determination B RFEEDNBEHSEMNREELZTE
of the fair value is based on the expected adjustment on HFABRTUETE - TEBRBETRFTE
consideration paid. The key assumption takes into consideration BIERMNBEZ Al R4 o
the probability of meeting each profit target.
REVENUE 5. KA
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales of goods: BmiEE -
— Watches —§B4% 70,642 122,280
- Display & packaging products — PR R B R 31,659 26,535
- Jewelries — K& 7,270 9,638
— Silverware —iR28 69,135 52,728
— Electric vehicles and related products —BETHERIBBEE®R 105,417 =
Commission and consultancy fee income e RBABRA 18,480 11,039
Freight income Ei A 665 427
303,268 222,647
OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. HUA\RHE iz
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank interest income RITHBHA 264 244
Exchange gain PEE 5, U7 28 788 28
Government grants (Note) BIS B (Kat) 1,437 -
Sundry income HMETE A 61 12
2,550 284

Note: Government grants of approximately HK$1,437,000 (2015: nil) have been
received during the year ended 31 December 2016 in relation to a tax
benefit regime entitled to a subsidiary of the Group for operating in /&
1 T2E (Shanghai Jinshan Industrial Zone*). There were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these government grants.

* for identification purposes only
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. #EpEH

The management reviews the Group’s internal reporting for EEERIAEBRNAINRSE AED B
performance assessment between segments and resource EERODEPHRBETIG - EEE
allocation. The management has determined the operating BEB(ERRERE) Rt 2] 5 &% 5D
segments based on business lines (products and services) and e EREORESAEBRES S A=
geographical areas. The management has determined that EAEZLEHE  (VERES L : (i)F
the Group is organised into three main operating segments: (i) BISRBEHTS  R(iVEETEES - 12
Sourcing Business; (i) PRC Silverware Business; and (jii) Electric EBREFRESENDHEEHE S DI
Vehicle Business. The management measures the performance HFRIE o

of the segments based on their respective segment results.

The principal products of each of these operations are as MEERKANTEERWOT
follows:
Sourcing Business Provision of sourcing (including product design, product development, raw

material sourcing and production outsourcing) and procurement (including
quality and assurance control, logistics and delivery handling service)
solutions to customers for production of watches, costume jewelries, and
display and packaging products

EREZER RAZFPRHEEEER AGKEMRIEERNERES (BRERRS
EmAE  RMEREBREEN) KEE (BEE2EEREW - MRk
RINIRTE) BRI E

PRC Silverware Business Retail and wholesale of luxury brand silverware and silver utensils in the PRC

P B R 88 K S RAEZERIEEEERERERREEAR

Electric Vehicle Business Manufacture and sale of rechargeable batteries, electric vehicles and related
products and provision of related services

EETHEEK SENHER BN - BE)TE RABME @I R AR RS
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and segment results

Information regarding the Group’s reportable operating
segments including the reconciliations to profit before income

tax are as follows.

Year ended 31 December 2016
Reportable segment revenue (note (a))
Reportable segment profit

Bank interest income

Loss arising in fair value change in
contingent consideration receivables
Corporate expenses

Profit before income tax

Adjusted earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation
(“Adjusted EBITDA") (note (b))
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AR ED AT
RITHBHA
EURHAKREATFER

MELZE#E
BERX

BRFR B AT A

REABRAE - B
rEREHE AR

([EHBERAIES - BiR

ELEHERAR])
(Htat(b)

7. SEEHE)

SEBA RS BB AR

ERAAEERRE

o A N
ff“éﬁ%]? A

PEOE R (2

RS HANE NSRRI

PRC

Sourcing Silverware
Business
hEISR2E
E 37
HK$’000
FET

Business

RRES
3]
HK$°000
FET

110,236 75,749

Electric
Vehicle
Business
EESE

E 30
HK$’000
FET

117,283

Total

@5t
HK$°000
FET

303,268

6,783 38,496

12,574

7,177 40,388

19,253

57,853

264

(1,275)

(17,762)

39,080

66,818
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DBEE(E)
Segment revenue and segment results (Continued) SEBUT N R ERELS (E)
PRC Electric
Sourcing  Silverware Vehicle
Business Business Business Total
EREE  HERE BHAE
% % %% et

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAT FBT FABT FET

Year ended 31 December 2015 EE2015F12A31H

LFE
Reportable segment revenue (note (a))  FI3RE 2 EBUA (FTit(a) 158,880 63,767 = 222,647
Reportable segment profit AHRE D 2B A 16,320 29,699 - 46,019
Bank interest income RITHEHA 244
Loss arising in fair value change in EW S AREBAFEES

contingent consideration receivables &+ 2 BB (12,154)

Corporate expenses PERZ (13,249)
Profit before income tax B P45 0 A A 20,864
Adjusted EBITDA (note (b)) ISARRAS - BB

WEREHAZF

(K15 b)) 16,811 30,995 - 47,806
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same S E 7 @t R ENEFRN 2K
as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment results represent T o DEEEIEER D IPHEIEL Z %
profit earned by each segment without allocation of bank T W ESEERITHA B A - B S
interest income, loss arising in fair value change in contingent RREATEEHMEL BB EFP R
consideration receivables, and central administrative expenses TEHAA(BE[PERSTIBEINZESE
including directors’ remuneration and partial finance costs e RIEORMEKAN) - HEEFES
under the heading of “corporate expenses”. This is the measure WMTEEBEATHS I LEEREDAHE
reported to management for the purpose of performance MR -

assessment between segments and resources allocation.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SEEHEE)
Segment assets and liabilities NEPEERER
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments assets BEEAEEAREDLEENBENE
and liabilities are as follows: BT

PRC Electric
Sourcing Silverware Vehicle
Business Business Business Total

ERES PERE ITHRE

£ 3 E 35 st
HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET

At 31 December 2016 2016512A31H

Reportable segment assets Al E DB EE 64,400 84,699 223,428 372,527
Unallocated assets RAOBLEE 30,270
Total assets S E 402,797
Reportable segment liabilities AIHESTEE 20,222 8,020 82,409 110,651
Unallocated liabilities RAABEE 34,148
Total liabilities @afE 144,799
At 31 December 2015 20156124318

Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 68,308 86,280 - 154,588
Unallocated assets ROBEE 69,875
Total assets BEE 224,463
Reportable segment liabilities s HEE 27,207 4,442 - 31,649
Unallocated liabilities KOBLEE 30,613
Total liabilities BAE 62,262
For the purpose of monitoring performance assessment R 2 = N R B N A (O o= =]
between segments and resources allocation, all assets and = BARTRITKRENZIESOME - K
liabilities are allocated to the reportable segments other than EREHE FERIARE  nHHES
partial property, plant and equipment for central administrative BEE - PHikE BNREREME
purposes, contingent consideration receivables, available-for- WiE LHIRERBEEEEY - 9D
sale financial assets, partial deposits, prepayment and other HihpENFIE BN —RBRERIE 45
receivables, partial cash and cash equivalents, partial other HHED  ENHRRELEFEA G
payables, amount due to a shareholder, secured loan, tax SN FRBBEEREBEHDIEEHRE D
payables and deferred tax liability. =R o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

Year ended 31 December 2016

Loss arising in fair value change
in contingent consideration
receivables

Bank interest income

Finance costs

Amortisation of interest in
leasehold land

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Written-off of property,
plant and equipment

Write-down of obsolete
inventories

Additions to non-current
assets (note (c))

Year ended 31 December 2015

#HZ2016512A31H
1LEE

ERAARELTE
BPELL

RATHEHA

HE TR

HE SR ERR L

REEE
EREEI G Y
RREF MR

FRYEENE
(K1)

HZE2015F12A318
HFE

Bargain purchase gain recognised R EHAHER 2

in a business combination
Loss arising in fair value change
in contingent consideration
receivables
Bank interest income
Finance costs
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Additions to non-current
assets (note (c))

HEBENS
ERSARELFE
BHELL
B
RITFEBA
RE R
HESEUERRZ
REER
nx  BERRERE

FRPEENE
(Ht(c)

Sourcing
Business

GRES

3
HK$°000

FET

7. SEWERE
Hitp 5 BEF

At

PRC
Silverware
Business
hE R
£
HK$°000
FET

ENMBEINMEENESER ¢

Electric
Vehicle
Business Unallocated Total
LU
%5 RAE @t
HK$’000
FET

HK$°000
FET

HK$°000
FET

- - - 1,275 1,275
- - - 264 264

- - 4,057 900 4,957

- - 272 - 272

8 - - - 8
304 1,801 6,405 349 9,039
- 112 - - 112
170 - - - 170
24 2,098 122,349 19 124,490
- 4,084 = - 4,084

- - - 12,154 12,154
- - - 244 244

- - - 811 811
633 - - - 633
493 1,206 - 347 2,136
463 2,184 - 15 2,662
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Other segment information (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment revenue in the current
year (2015: nil).

(b) Adjusted EBITDA is also a measurement basis regularly reviewed by the
directors of the Company in performance assessment between segments
and resources allocation. This measurement basis is consistent with that
of the segment results except that finance costs, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and amortisation of interest in leasehold land are not
included in the Adjusted EBITDA.

(c) Addition to non-current assets represents additions to property, plant and
equipment and interest in leasehold land.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong (place
of domicile) and the PRC. The Group’s revenue by geographical
locations is determined based on location at which the services
were provided or the goods were delivered, or on shipment
destination instructed by customers. The Group’s non-current
assets by geographical locations are determined based on
physical locations of the assets.

SEEFE(E
Hitp 5 BEF ()

iz -

(@)

EXFE2HRN D BKRAIIINEZESBLA © R
REEZ WD ZE A (20155F : £) -

ARREEERRMERABERAE - HEA -
ERBHENATN  (FARFED BMERRR
BRDEHFTEELE - fhFr BEEE D FPX
B0 EEHERME - BE - FERE
HABNTEERAEKS - WX - BE KR
I E RS T Y o

FRBEERNBRYE BERRERER
HETIESRE -

HE&EH

AEBMEBREEMNEE (ML) &
RE o NS E LR S D H AR R
RN EYIRETFETNNE
BEERE - AEBIRMES D H3ER
HEEREEERMHETE

Revenue from external
customers
REIEBEFBUA
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong (place of domicile) A ()
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong FE - ARERS
United States of America EFNEE R
Europe BOM

— Germany — =[]

— Denmark — 742

- Others —HAh
Asia EEN
Oceania AAEM
Others EAh
Total 5T
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FET TET
27,746 32,985
184,908 63,777
32,453 61,707
43,007 57,269
2,862 =
1,305 1,491
2,084 3,828
8,903 =

- 1,590
303,268 222,647
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DBEE(E)
Other segment information (Continued) WESE(Z)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non- AR B EEMEMENEE 5 IR
current assets analysed by the geographical locations in which HEERBESN :

the assets are located:

Non-current assets
FRBNEE
2016 2015

20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000

F#ETT FET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) 8 (GEf ) 10,275 13,744
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong FE - ABRERES 114,235 4,589
Total st 124,510 18,333
Information about major customers FEEFREHR
Revenue from customers for the year ended 31 December 2016 EFERBZE2016F k2015612 H31H
and 2015 contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the IEFEAAEEFRBUAI0%IA LK
Group are as follows: BRI :

2016 2015
20164 20154

Reporting segments HK$’000 HK$’000
&7 TF#ET FAT
Customer A Sourcing Business 77,388 125,064
EFA BERESXEY
Customer B (Note) PRC Silverware Business 48,689 N/A
BEB(KEE) Bl R 28 5 TiE A
Customer C (Note) Electric Vehicle Business 106,974 N/A
BFEC(HaE) BH)TBEER T iE A
Except as disclosed above, no other customers contributed M EXFTHEEI  AMEEE @ e
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue for both years. B R ABANE B AU ATRK10%3k A
FHER ©
Note: Revenue derived from Customer B and Customer C did not contribute 10% Hiat - BE2015F12A31BLEFE  REREFBK
or more to the Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31 December EFECHWANEAAEEBKATRI0%
2015. S IA EERE ©
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8. FINANCE COSTS

8. MBEME

Interest on secured loan
Imputed interest on convertible bonds
(note 26)

BEWERZHE
AR ER 2 EEFE

(Biiz26)

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
900 811
4,057 =
4,957 811

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

9. BRFASHLAVIRF

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRATBBHATR IR, GEA)ATH
TRIRZER

Auditors’ remuneration:
— Audit service
— Non-audit services

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade receivables

Cost of inventories sold

Amortisation of interest in leasehold land

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Net exchange gain

Operating lease charges in respect of land and
buildings

Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration):
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
— Share-based payment expenses
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Written-off of property, plant and equipment

Write-down of obsolete inventories
(included in cost of sales)
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2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET F&T
ZERT S
— &z R 599 475
—FEZRG 168 338
767 813
HE SR FEMERZ
WIEEE 8 633
HEFERA 200,752 135,256
TR &+ i e O 8H 272 -
M - BB REREITE 9,039 2,136
b H i = 5 5 (788) (28)
R RIEFHLEEHE
X 5,588 5,849
EEBAMFAX
(PREZMR) :
—%® R REMFR 30,037 28,893
—DARRD AER 2 XX - 5,130
—RIREA GBI 1,854 1,230
31,891 35,253
Y - BB &R e 112 =
PREFEMRGTABEKA)
170 =
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FiIEBiAX

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000

T FET
Current tax BHAR 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBFER 1,047 2,856
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B EERTSH 14,521 9,004
15,568 11,860
Over provision in prior years BAFEBEREE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BABMNEB (80) (62)
15,488 11,798
Deferred tax: IEFEFLIA -
— credit for the year (note 27) —FERNE R (ffat27) (669) =
14,819 11,798
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BB NFT IR E S E B A5t R
assessable profit for both years. PRC subsidiaries are subject to HEAIIA16.5% ML KFTH - FEIMEA
PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for both years. A1 P W E 4F [E A 7B 12 25% B0 B B 4 R

BEEMEHR -
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

10. FifeBiEAX (&)

REFWAEVAX EGRARs LEM
2EUE R A ERR ATIS B AT A 2 3 BR
wmr

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000

11.

105 Annual Report 2016 F3R

Fi#&T FET

Profit before income tax B BT 1575 A g A 39,080 20,864
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to the ¥ HERE B A RE IR Ay R AR R

jurisdictions concerned FTE®HHIE 10,789 6,061
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR B S R A 4,916 4,298
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARRMANRIEZE (106) (706)
Accelerated accounting depreciation over MEREHFERBL (TR),/

tax depreciation (under)/over provided BEHIEITERE (614) 132
Tax effect of estimated tax losses RIERG TS BB

not recognised M2 33 2,304
Tax effect of utilisation of estimated B) AR MR AT FLIS BB

tax losses not recognised WigeE (119) (229)
Over provision of tax in prior years BEFERIEBERE (80) (62)
Income tax expense for the year FRRFHAX 14,819 11,798

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
estimated tax losses of approximately HK$12,456,000 (2015:
HK$12,977,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams and
unrecognised tax losses could be carried forward indefinitely.

DIVIDENDS

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year, nor
has any dividend been proposed by the board of directors
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

RIBEBRR  REBREKRBAMGBH
5 /5 18 #912,456,000 78 7T (2015 £F
12,977,000 7T ) + A A K 8 oK 2K s
Mo ARKEFNREFETEEM « i)
WARBHEEEBRRELEHRBELE - B
RERT BB A BB A5ES o

1. Ix8
FAMBRNEBRARE - BES
ENMEZENHREPRRIKREZE LMK

B o

IS
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12. BlREF (F5E)

The computations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per KRR EAEBHRERERNR#H SR
share attributable to owners of the Company are based on the A, (E18) A T &g AR EAHE
following data:

2016
20164
HK$°000
FETT
Earnings/(loss) B (&E)
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of basic and ~ FEMRER RE#EHER T,

diluted earnings/(loss) per share (profit/(loss)  (E18) M5 < &BF|,/ (E1E)
for the year attributable to owners of the (RRREB ABIEFA
Company) wmF (&) 10,328 (1,664)

2015
20154
’000
Fhg
(restated)
(#2&E5))

Number of shares BB
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Bt ERERREF],(BE)M=

for the purpose of basic earnings/(loss) per 2 TR T H

share 1,550,540 1,234,358
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEEST AR FE

Share options FERRHE 33,204 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Bt EREE AT, (BE )M =

for the purpose of diluted earnings/(loss) 2R i 9 £

per share 1,583,744 1,234,358

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year
ended 31 December 2015 for the purpose of calculating basic
and diluted loss per share have been restated and adjusted for
share subdivision which took place on 4 May 2016.

As the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds where
applicable had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic earnings per
share calculation for the year ended 31 December 2016, the
conversion of the above potential dilutive shares is not assumed
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

As the Company’s outstanding share options where applicable
had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share calculation
for the year ended 31 December 2015, the conversion of the
above potential dilutive shares is not assumed in the calculation
of diluted loss per share.

HZE2015F 12831 HIEFE 2 @A
MEFHH(ARTESRAEARALEE
E18) 2 AN 201645 A4 H 3 A0 IR 7%
WA FAED KA -

R AN A R) 8 R 171 A A] 2 AR & 25 (]
HA)YHEZ2016F12A31HIEFEZ
ERERRFZAEEAREELE -
WA ET E & IS 2 IR I & R R iR
B EESER G -

R AR ] M AR TEREARE(HER)
HWEHZE2015F12A31BIEtFE 2 E&
ERAEBBEZAEEERBEZE R
STE IS E R Y ERRER
BEEERG -
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13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
applicable GEM Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Company Ordinances, is as follows: T

13. EERABRSH A LB

REBERZEIZR EMRAEBEAF
FEPIZHEBHRE  AFEEFMEEE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
Discretionary  and benefits scheme
Fees bonuses inkind  contribution Total
Fig 2 BRI
e BT EWHE HE dct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE2016F12A31HILEE
Executive directors: gES:
Fei Jie B 1,200 - - - 1,200
Fung Chi Kin IR 1,800 100 - - 1,900
Ng Chin Ming Stephen BE(R201753A108
(appointed on 10 March 2017) EZf) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B FEHTES -
Cheung Siu Wah ROE 240 20 - - 260
Jim Yiu Ming E12H 240 20 - - 260
Sit Sai Hung, Billy g 300 20 - - 320
Shen Ruolei AEE 218 - - - 218
3,008 160 - - 4,158
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13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

13. EERABREHALTHHRN Z)

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
Discretionary  and benefits scheme
Fees bonuses in kind contribution Total
e 2R RIER
ika HiBTea ENfla sl @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T FET FAT TAT
Year ended 31 December 2015 HZE2015F12A31 B LFE
Executive directors: gES:
Fei Jie BN 1,200 - - - 1,200
Fung Chi Kin e 1,800 - - - 1,800
Independent non-executive directors: B IEHTES :
Cheung Siu Wah ROE 240 - - - 240
Jim Yiu Ming ErRH 240 - = = 240
Sit Sai Hung, Billy aug: 300 - - - 300
Shen Ruolei (appointed on TEE(R2016%F2848
4 February 2016) EZf) - - - - -
3,780 - - - 3,780

Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen has also been appointed as Chief
Executive upon appointment as executive director.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office.

hRALSENEZERATESRR @ 7§
EEZERTRER -

H E 20164 %2015 12 A 31 B |F 4F
B WEERESRENREEREEM
& 25k -

B E20164F 201512 A31 B IF 5
B AEETERARREE S NEM
B - 1E A% % 0 B2 sk pA I BB AN &R [ s
B SN Sk BE IR o
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13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 13. EERAZESHFATHEFNZ)

109 Annual Report 2016 F3R

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

The five highest paid individual consisted of two (2015: two) hEammHATBEME (201546 M
directors, details of whose remuneration are reflected in the BIEE FEFHFER EXMIS
analysis presented above. Details of remuneration of the DT R o HEp=2 (20155 : =4)
remaining three (2015: three) highest paid individual are as R ATHEFEESOT ¢

follows:

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000

FETT FAET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUAREYANR 5,336 7,240

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFIEEIHER 54 54

5,390 7,294

The remuneration paid to the above remaining three highest paid WmIERRFE|—§E EFRNERMUE

individuals, who are not directors and senior management as set EH=ZEaHm AT (BTIEES - NI
out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors”, for the year SRMEEAS NHFHMNENATE&HE -

fell within the following band:

Number of individuals

A
2016 2015
20164
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 7T - =
HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7L £2,000,0007 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7L 23,000,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,001/ 7L 24,000,000 7T - 1
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14. TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

*

IN WHICH DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY HAVE
MATERIAL INTERESTS
For the year ended 31 December 2015

On 20 March 2013, the Company and ‘&I IRk EER A
Al (Shenzhen Guifeng Watch Company Limited*) (“Guifeng”)
entered into a renewed master agreement (“Outsourcing
Agreement”) whereby Guifeng agrees to carry out watch
assembly work for the Sourcing Business based on purchase
orders placed by the Group from time to time for a term from 20
March 20183 to 31 December 2015. A close family member of
Mr. Yang Yijun, a former director who resigned on 23 September
2014, has material equity interest in Guifeng. The transaction
contemplated under the Outsourcing Agreement constitute
a continuing connected transactions for the Company under
chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Transaction with Guifeng ceased to be related party
transactions pursuant to the resignation of Mr. Yang Yijun.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, transaction under
the Outsourcing Agreement between the Group and Guifeng
with the amount of approximately HK$7,164,000. On 23
September 2015, Mr. Yang Yijun ceased to be a connected
person of the Company and transactions under the Outsourcing
Agreement with Guifeng ceased to be connected transaction
of the Group in accordance to chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The directors of the Company had reviewed the continuing
connected transaction and confirmed that these transaction had
been entered into; (i) in the Company ordinary usual course of
business of the Group, (i) on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favorable to the than terms available to or from
independent third party and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreement with terms which are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

for identification purposes only

14. FAFNEEHFERERZRS -

RHHEL
HZ20156F 12531 HIFFZE

M2013F3A20R » AR EFRYITHE
BsREARAB([HE DL —HEE
BrmR (oM HmER]D - Bt - EER
EERERAEETHELMEERE &
TERESEBOERMARTIE 5
2013 3 A20H B E 2015 12 A 31
HiE - IEESEH —F LA (R20145F
QA3HBIE )M —REXRBREEE
BEARGOERZ - BIBRAIZER ETRA
F20E - HMNIRRE TEETHR S8
RARBZIFEBERS ©

A —FLRERE  BREEZZFHAIR
BREEALRS -

HE2015F 128318 ILEE » A&EE
BB ZABBEE TR S
#9/7,164,0007% 7T ° 201549 H 23
H B—FLETHEAARABEA
+ - MBRAIZER LR AIE20% - B
HEZNBRETITORZTERAS
EMRERS -

AREMEZCENFERERS - LHE
RZERD ()N AKE B R —RES
BRI () —RAEAFRERITER
AR B FBE =TT R R ES IR
#EIT - R(iRBEEE R ZET - MER
BEREBRAFEEANAARAARRNE
A -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements equipment machinery vehicles  in progress Total
fil RE
% HERE RiE  HERKE RE EEIR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT T4 T T T T
Cost BE
At 1 January 2015 201561 A1 = 1,336 2,207 4,661 1,334 - 9,538
Additions NE - 1,771 306 287 298 - 2,662
Disposals BE - - - - (44) - (44)
Acquisition through business ~ FBERA HUKE
combination (note 34) (H334) - 2,898 252 - - - 3,150
Exchange alignments AR = (280) (58) - (1) - (299)
At 31 December 2015andat ~ #2015E12R318 R
1 January 2016 201651418 - 5,775 2,107 4,948 1,577 - 15,007
Additions AE 50,888 168 1,207 47,180 2,125 960 103,128
Disposals HE - - (26) - - - (26)
Witten-off i3 - (168) - - - - (168)
Exchange alignments EHHE (2,750) (288) (121) (2,466) (146) (31) (5,802)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A318 48,138 5,487 3,767 49,662 4,156 929 112,139
Accumulated depreciation ~ RitifE
At 1 January 2015 20151 A1R - 557 1,508 3,967 642 - 6,669
Charge for the year FRYH - 1342 386 232 176 - 2,136
Eliminated on disposals REERHESH = = = = 43) - 43)
Exchange alignments AR - (60) (45) - ) = (108)
At31 December 2015andat ~ H2015F12A31B R
1 January 2016 2016F1A1H - 1,839 1,844 4199 74 - 8,606
Charge for the year ERg 1,381 1,716 448 5,060 444 - 9,039
Eliminated on disposals R EREH - - (17) - - - (17)
Written-off s - (56) - - - - (56)
Exchange alignments i A% (48) (139) (57) (166) (19) - (425)
At 31 December 2016 #2016%127A318 1,333 3,360 2,218 9,083 1,203 - 17,197
Carrying amounts FEE
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A318 46,805 2,121 1,549 40,579 2,953 929 94,942
At 31 December 2015 R2015%127A318 = 3,936 863 749 803 - 6,351

AEBENBTFURBE  WATHEE
KA -

The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC held on medium-
term leases.

HZE2016F12A31HILFE - % -
= K RN E 49/598,806,000/8 7T
ABTRI R E S SN (R 6 B RE
MI5E38(a)) °

During the year ended 31 December 2016, included in the
additions of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately HK$98,806,000, was satisfied by issuance of
convertible bonds (note 38(a) to the consolidated financial
statements).
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16. INTEREST IN LEASEHOLD LAND 16. FHETM#ER
HK$’000
FET
Cost BRA
At 1 January 2015, at 31 December 2015 and  #®2015F 1 A1 H  2015F 12 A 31 H &
at 1 January 2016 20161 A1H -
Additions NE 21,362
Exchange alignments VE AR (1,155)
At 31 December 2016 72016512 H31H 20,207
Accumulated amortisation St
At 1 January 2015, at 31 December 2015 and  ®W2015F 1 A1 H  2015F 12 A 31 H &
at 1 January 2016 20161 /81H -
Amortisation for the year INFE 272
Exchange alignments b X FEE (8)
At 31 December 2016 1201612 H431H 264
Carrying amount AREE
At 31 December 2016 ®2016E12A31H 19,943
At 31 December 2015 M2015F12831H -

The Group’s interest in leasehold land is located in the PRC held A& E A HE Tz 7 A AR B - 37 BA A A7
on medium-term lease. HERE -

During the year ended 31 December 2016, additions of interest ~ #Z20165 12431 B ILFE - HE Tz
in leasehold land of approximately HK$21,362,000, was /A& #)/421,362,000/8 7T © A EITR] AR E
satisfied by issuance of convertible bonds (note 38(a) to the FX I (4RE M HBHRAMN +E38(a)) °
consolidated financial statements).
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17.

18.

113 Annual Report 2016 F3R

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

17.

O EERMEE

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FEIT

FLETIRE :
- BARAES

Unlisted investment:
— Equity securities in Hong Kong

The above unlisted equity investment represent investment in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entity incorporated
in Hong Kong. Unlisted equity investment is measured at cost
less impairment at the end of the reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that fair value
cannot be measured reliably.

The directors of the Company assessed the recoverable amount
of unlisted equity security with the basis of past performance,
management expectation for market development and certain
key assumption. Based on the above assessment, the directors
of the Company considered that there is no indication that
material decline or adverse changes in the market in which
investee operated occurred and the directors of the Company
considered that the cost of investment is still considered to be
recoverable, thus no impairment loss was recognised for both
years.

INVENTORIES

18.

9,000 9,000

bt 3F ETRRAIRE A B MK
METLAERATEITRIE LT AANES
ZRE - HREERFEMFZHBER
R RBARREER/EATFENRE
ASEMEE - B3 EmRAREER
HEHIREKAANERRERE -

ARBEEREB/ERR - EEEHD
LRREARETEEZRRNMGIEL
MERARESH A B S5 o AR EatFF
fMER  ARAEERA/LETRKHA
REHREEMEMSHRERNTBX
THE  BARBEFTRA/KRELAS
AR R AT UR[E] - ERt 7 P 4 2 3
RBEERE -

Raw materials JR
Work in progress ERm
Finished goods X h

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
included in ‘cost of sales’ with the amount of approximately
HK$200,752,000 (2015: HK$135,256,000), which included
write-down of obsolete inventories of approximately
HK$170,000 (2015: nil).

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ETT FET
9,167 3,808
6,085 =
30,923 12,672
46,175 16,480

BREBI LA HEXR INEE
FX AN %) £ 200,752,000 7T (20154 -
135,256,000/ 7T ) © BIEREF &S MU
#9170,000/ 7L (20154 : &) ©
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19. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES 19.

The balance represents the contingent consideration
receivables in relation to the acquisition of Core Kingdom
Limited and its subsidiaries (Collectively referred as “Core
Kingdom Group”) (note 34). Contingent consideration
receivables have been designated at financial assets at FVTPL
upon initial recognition and measure at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The movement of the fair value of
contingent consideration receivables are as follow:

FEWr =k A KB

“EERTE B AUk B Core Kingdom Limited
FEM B A (41 &[ Core KingdomE
H )z BRSHARAE(MEI4) o UK
ANRERVLEREIETEBIRA T ET
ABHEHNEREE - WRHREHKREA
FEFE c BURARBEZAFEED
R

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000

At 1 January ®1A1R8

Arising in acquisition of subsidiaries AU EEKT B AR mESE
(note 34) (Ktz#34)

Loss arising in fair value change NEEESBEEEE

At 31 December M12H31H

Note: Shortfall payment in respect of profit guarantee

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (“SPA”) entered in relation
to the acquisition, the vendor has guaranteed that the audited profit after
tax of W TBIRE S BLE BB A A (Zhejiang Tong Yin Precious Metal
Operation Company Limited*) (“Tong Yin”) and its subsidiary for the three
financial years ended 31 December 2015, 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2017 shall not be less than RMB20,000,000, RMB24,000,000
and RMB30,000,000 respectively.

In case the profit guarantee is not fulfilled for the corresponding year, the
vendor shall pay 51% of the shortfall (“Shortfall”) to the Company within
seven days of the delivery of the audited consolidated financial statements,
and for the avoidance of doubt, if Tong Yin and its subsidiary sustained loss
for such financial year, 51% of the amount of such loss shall be included as
part of the Shortfall.

The fair value of profit guarantee as at completion date, amounted to
approximately HK$20,536,000.

* for identification purposes only

FHET T
8,382 -
- 20,536
(1,275) (12,154)
7,107 8,382

Hia : SAIRE 2 2R

RERKBEBEFAIC2EEHA(EEH
F) BHARENIBRESEBCLERA
AI([@EE]) REHB A RREE2015512
A31H - 2016412 A31 H K 2017412 8
31 B I =AM BFE 2 S ERRT &R &
2 B DA A R # 20,000,000 © AR
24,000,0007T & A R #30,000,0007T °

i@ M RELREFEREER - BHAR
RNEECE R BRREFTLRAARAA
AN ERE(Z/M61% - MARESRE
i 278 4R I L BT 8 2 ) A B8 B B 4R R A A
BER AZEREENSI%ABEENA
ERERZ 817 °

REKBH  SMNREIAFENA
20,536,000 7T °
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19. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
audited net profit of Tong Yin and its subsidiary has satisfied the
profit guarantee, as a result, the vendor is not required to make
the shortfall payment to the Company in accordance with the
terms and condition stated in the SPA.

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivables at
31 December 2016 and at 31 December 2015 are based on
valuation prepared by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited
(“Ascent Partners”), an independent qualified professional
valuer, by using the expected present value method and a loss
arising in fair value change of approximately HK$1,275,000
(2015: HK$12,154,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

At the end of the reporting period, contingent consideration
receivables analysed into non-current assets and current assets
as follows:

Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

19. FEWEARARE(E)

RELZE 201649 %2015 12 31 H IEF
& BIRREN B R 2 EE R T
BEEZRMRE Bt - EHEEAR
BEEHZEMIBNGERREERERR
AIfEL Z R ©

R2016 4 12 A31 A k20154 12 A 31
BREKSAREAFEDNREBLA
BRBEGEMIFATELAER QA
([¥F D REMNGERFEAERREEE
- WREEEEREMEEKERA
HRATFEEBEEL1,2750008 7T
(20154 : 12,154,000/ 7T) °

RBERR - BEIAKRERIFRE R
MBEERNANMAT :

2016 2015
20164E 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FAETT

Analysed for reporting purpose as: ERMBODTWT :
— Non-current assets —EREBEE
— Current assets —REEE

- 2,982
7,107 5,400
7,107 8,382
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group assesses the credit status and imposes credit limits
for the customers in accordance with the Group’s credit policy.
The credit limits are closely monitored and subject to periodic
reviews.

The Group normally allows credit period of 1 to 90 days (2015: 1
to 60 days) to its major customers. Credit period is normally not
granted to other customers.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables,
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates the
respective revenue recognition dates and net of allowance for
doubtful debts:

20. ESMEKRIE

AEERBEEERRATFHGEER
ARAREMEERE - FERESXE
TR - WAETE IR

AREB—BRAETEEFHTIEIOKR
(20154 : 1Z60K)MEEH] - — AR
B TEREMEEETEES-

BREZAM(AZUEERAHEE) 2
5|2 B 5 W RIE < R ik 2 i (2 kR
REEB )T

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000

0-30 days 0—30X
31-60 days 31—60X
61-90 days 61—90K

Over 90 days 90K A =

At 31 December 2016, trade receivables with the amounts of
approximately HK$55,120,000 (2015: HK$16,082,000) is due
from the Group’s largest customer.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year is as follows:

FET T
62,675 11,958
4,504 11,642
207 -
5,320 219
72,706 23,719

R2016F12 A31H » BRAEBEZF KA
EERE S EWFRIAE A£4%)55,120,0007%8
7(2015% : 16,082,000/ 7T ) °

2016 2015
20164E 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET

At 1 January ®W1A1H
Impairment loss recognised B HERREERE
Written-off g

At 31 December ®12H31H

8 633
8 (633)
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivable with balance of approximately
HK$8,000 (2015: HK$633,000) which has been placed under
liquidation due to financial difficulties. The directors of the
Company have taken recovery actions to collect the outstanding
balance but all attempts were in vain, hence impairment was
made to this individual receivable.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below
for aging analysis) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not recognised an allowance
for doubtful debts because there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired:

Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

20. BEHMEWRIEE)

482 498,000% 7T (20154 : 633,000/%
70 MERIERER S BAFKIR - ThE
ARERE  MAMBEREE - ZERA
ERNBREMN - RAREFZERIVE
AITBAKRERERER  BEXBTA
HBMRR - B 5% M8 B FE R IR VR R
-

EXHWEZESHERURFABERREH
REBHZRBEREOMETX) - &
REEERYESE AN RZEHEA
WAL UR[E] - ERAN SR 3 S R R R AR
B AEEYERZFERTEEM
Efm e

@B R RE B 5 R WA 2 R ik
DT

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000

Neither past due nor impaired 3 4 260 HA SORLE
1-30 days past due @HE1 — 30K
31-60 days past due #HI31 — 60K
61-90 days past due #HI61 — 90K
Over 90 days past due BEFOOKRIA

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the
reporting period.

FETT FET
64,431 17,454
8,113 6,043
153 2

- 21

9 199
72,706 23,719

FE B TR 5 M MUROR 2 A M B
EEEE RN AL EHE SRS
RBIERSEMRE ERERHRY
EARD -




21.

22.

23.

e XFEFEFEER LT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21.#% -  EfSEREGEKIRIE
RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Deposits paid BffES 2,059 969
Trade deposits paid BHEMRE 8,465 89
Prepayments AR IR 1,381 1,831
Other receivables o fE W sk IE 12,546 11,942
24,451 14,831
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED COMPANIES/ 22. FEUr (FEfH)REAT,—&2 1K
A SHAREHOLDER/NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS RIS RIE
Amounts due from/(to) related companies/a shareholder/non- el (FERM)BBERT —ZRREIE
controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free and repayable R ERRIEAERT R ENERE
on demand. SKIEE o
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. HE2RINLEEY

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000

BE RRITHEER
e HERITER

Cash and bank balances
Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and placed with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. Short-
term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three month depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short-term time deposit rates ranged from 0.34% to 1.29% p.a.
(2015: 0.30% to 4.20% p.a.).

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and bank balances
denominated in USD and Renminbi (“RMB”) is approximately
HK$34,883,000 and HK$54,398,000 (2015: HK$29,238,000
and HK$36,817,000) respectively.

FHET TAET
108,799 130,216
18,923 15,484
127,722 145,700

IRITARRIZIZE R R B - WIFHRE
HETREE B EERT - BHEH
GRZHBRA—HE=@EATE - 11k
FARERZARRESFRME - T EIK
N TEFNEO34EZET.29[E (20154 -
FRXR0I0EEL4208) 2 EHEHTF
FFEBREUF S, o

MN2016FE12 A31H » REB U ET
MAREB(TAREDFENRES RIR
1T # % 2 B 4 & 34,883,000 7 T &
54,398,000 7T (20154 : 29,238,000
77T % 36,817,000/ 7T ) °
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
foreign exchange control promulgated imposed by the PRC
government. The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated
in RMB located in Hong Kong is not subject to the foreign
exchange control.

23.

HeRBELEE/BM(E)
ARBUFAIEHLBZEY  MEH
FEZESXPEBFETHINEE F
B - AEEUARKFENRS MR
TTRBFBNES - TRINEE HIPTAR
& o

24, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. BERHEMEMRNRIE
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Trade payables B S ERRIE 43,845 24,334
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R E AR R 8,733 7,397
Receipt in advance TEMFRIA 126 249
Trade deposits received BZEWiRE 1,288 345
53,992 32,325

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables, based on
the invoice date:

BREFHHZ2I 2 EHRNFAZ R
DT

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000

0-30 days 0-30K

31-60 days 31-60K
61-90 days 61-90X
Over 90 days 90K A E
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FET FET
15,179 11,713
4,886 6,070
4,968 5,864
18,812 687
43,845 24,334




25.

26.

Zig X FEEEHFR AT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

SECURED LOAN 25. HIRHER
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FET
Secured loan repayable within one year AR—FRERHNEERER 15,000 15,000

The secured loan bears interest at 1% per annum above
the Hong Kong dollars prime lending rate published by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and is
repayable together with interest not later than 12 months from
the drawdown date. The loan is fully secured by the share
capital of Powerwell Pacific, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company incorporated in the BVI. Subject to the fulfiiment of
certain conditions, the Company shall have the right to extend
the repayment date to another 12 months from the original
repayment date.

On 6 February 2016, the Company signed a supplemental loan
agreement to extend the repayment date of the secured loan to
another 12 months from the original repayment date.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 1 June 2016, the Company issued unsecured convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$110,000,000 to satisfied
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and interest
in leasehold land (collectively referred to as the “Sale Assets”)
(note 38(a) to the consolidated financial statements). The bonds
are interest free. The bondholders may convert the bonds
into ordinary shares of the Company at any time prior to and
exclusive of the maturity date on 31 May 2018 at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.55 per share in accordance with
the convertible bonds agreements (subject to adjustment if
necessary). The conversion price was adjusted to HK$0.11 per
share and the number of conversion shares were adjusted from
200,000,000 shares to 1,000,000,000 shares on 4 May 2016
upon the completion of share subdivision. If the bonds have
not been converted, they will be redeemed on 31 May 2018 at
principal amount. The convertible bonds are denominated in
HKS.

26.

BEERFERZES LSEERITERA
AIEM 2 BT REZNEMFERE1E
B - BZEER BIREA RN 12
BAZF B8 —FEE - EFFPowerwell
Pacific( A2 RIFA 328 g & B & et Ak 32
Z—EEEWBAR) 2BRAEZEE
ReBRE—EBRE  AARAEERER
R EZERBBLERE12(EA -

R2016%F2A6H @+ NAREIERF] — BT
BERE  WEBEERERNEZEBRH
HEREZHHBLERI2@A -

o[ iR R% &S

MR2016F6A1H » RRAEBITASHE
110,000,000 7T /Y £5 3 38 0] 2 j% (&
FoUIHKEDE - BE REEN
RE+HER(ABAFHEEE]
(A EREMITE38(a) - ZEEHFR
B BEAMRELSHRE  BHFEFBEA
Al 20184E5 A31 BHEIHI A (B 1%
H ) Bl {E fa] B ) 42 4 20 85 42 (B § 1R 0.55
BIL(AIREZER TUAR)BESER
RARNTE AR - BRER201655 A
ARRMFHETHKERAEEGR0AE
JC ¢ T2 B’ A% 1 8k B B 200,000,000 f%
¥ %= 1,000,000,0000% ° fifl (& % & &
it o AIi52018F5 A31 B A& E
[B] o AT ESH B TTRTE ©

Annual Report 2016 £ i

120



Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 26. T[RREHF(EZ)
The bond contains two components, liability and equity BEBHBEMEID (A EBMD MERE
elements. The equity element is presented in equity under the 7)o EmEBHRERIE T [ AR ES
heading of “convertible bonds reserve”. The effective interest E 25 c BEIMHZERFERLY
rate of the liability component on initial recognition is 7.41%. HHEARE ET7.41% °

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000

F#ETT FET
At the beginning of the reporting period S EIA - =
Issuance of convertible bonds BT HRRES 94,892 =
Conversion into shares during the year FRNEIRBRN (51,168) -
Imputed interest expenses (note 8) HEEF B (fE8) 4,057 =
At the end of the reporting period HwEHIR 47,781 -
27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 27. BEHRIEAE
The following is the major deferred tax balance recognised by INTAREERR . EEREHBLEH
the Group and movements thereon: REBRES :
Convertible
bonds
AR (E
HK$’000
FAET
At 1 January 2015, at 31 December 2015 and 1201551 A1H + 2016128318 K&
at 1 January 2016 20161 A1H =
Recognised directly in equity BEERERTPER 4,170
Credit to consolidated statement of FTAGRE B R MR IR ER
profit or loss and other comprehensive (Ktaz10)
income (note 10) (669)
Released of deferred tax upon conversion of PABE IR O] $R A (3 o5 A B R I T8
convertible bonds (1,822)
At 31 December 2016 ®2016E12A31H 1,679
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02
(2015: HK$0.10) each

Authorised:
At the beginning of the
reporting period
Share subdivision (Note v)

At the end of the reporting
period

Issued and fully paid:

At the beginning of
the reporting period

Issuance of shares upon
open offer (Note i)

Issuance of consideration
shares (Note ii)

Placement of new shares
(Note iii)

Exercise of share options
(Note iv)

Share subdivision (Note v)

Conversion of convertible
bonds (Note vi)

At the end of the reporting
period

28. &
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
Number of Number of
ordinary Carrying ordinary Carrying
shares amount shares amount
LiE A IREE el g FREE
‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$’000
Fig FETT T FET
F1%0.0277C
(20154 : 0.1077T)
B E AR
RS -
ez a=g
1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Rt 4 (Bt v) 4,000,000 - = -
5,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
EBITRHRE :
ez a=g
306,700 30,670 150,000 15,000
NHRBERETHR
(Btati) - - 88,000 8,800
BITRERD (K772i)
- - 26,000 2,600
Aic & 57 A% (A atiii)
- - 35,200 3,520
TTIERB AR (A ativ)
- - 7,500 750
Rtn 4l (Hazv) 1,226,800 - 8 -
BRI R ES
(Btatvi) 517,709 10,354 -~ -
R E
2,051,209 41,024 306,700 30,670
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(v)

(vi)

123  Annual Report 2016 %R

On 31 March 2015, the Company announced that it proposed to raise
approximately HK$61,600,000 before expenses by the way of open offer
of 88,000,000 new ordinary shares at the subscription price of HK$0.70
per offer share on the basis of one offer share for every two ordinary shares
held by the shareholders of the Company (the “Open Offer”). The estimated
net proceeds of the Open Offer will be approximately HK$59,300,000.
The Company intends to apply such net proceeds from the Open Offer
for financing future investment activities if and when suitable opportunities
arise and business development and working capital requirement of the
Group. The Open Offer was completed on 19 May 2015.

According to the SPA dated 8 December 2014 in relation to the acquisition
of the entire equity interest of Core Kingdom Limited, the Company
has issued the consideration shares of 26,000,000 new shares (the
“Consideration Shares”) on 27 February 2015, at the issue price of HK$0.89
per shares, being part of the consideration for the acquisition.

On 27 July 2015, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate
35,200,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each to six placees at a price of
HK$0.725 per shares. The net proceeds of approximately HK$25,520,000
will be used for working capital to the Group to meet any future
development and obligations.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 7,500,000 new ordinary shares
were allotted and issued at exercise price of HK$1.17 per share pursuant
to the exercise of share options granted under the Company’s share option
scheme (the “Option Scheme”).

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 3 May 2016, a
resolution was passed to approve the share subdivision of every existing
issued and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company subdivided into five shares of par value of HK$0.02
each in the share capital of the Company. The share subdivision was
completed and effective on 4 May 2016.

On 19 December 2016, a convertible bonds holder has exercised its
conversion rights attached to the convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$56,948,026 into 517,709,327 ordinary shares of
the Company at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.11 per share.

28. A (E)

Wiz

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

M201543A31H + KRR EMBERIZAR
AREEREMREBERAIERE —REE
B2 EEUFRFERHD0.70B T ZR
85 {8 A 7 % £ 88,000,000 A% 1 & @A ([ A
B E |) &£ & 4961,600,00078 7T (KR R F
X) o REBEZ A BERIBFEENA
59,300,000 7T > AR B i§ AR % & Fr
JHRIBFEARBNRRLRE BRERN
BRERHRERBEUARREAEBZ LE
BEEHE - AFBESN2015F58198 %
EJZ °

B I#% B A2014412 A8 8 & B3 W & Core
Kingdom Limited 2 EP ik 1€ 2 B & i :4 - A
RRIAEAR0.897%8 T 2 B TEM2015F2A4
27 B %1726,000,0008% X A5 ([ B
B DERKEEE BAHRE -

R2015%F7 278 + AR RIAFK0.725
BT ZEBRRANBERRARERETEH
35,200,000/% & IR E f80.107% 7T Z # AR (5 °
FT 15 F R840 525,520,000/ 7T © 15 M 1E
AE@BzEBEESURBENARERKE
TEENEE -

HZE2015F12A31 B L FE - BITFERE
AR R & ([ FEARERT & ) B 2 88
fig## - 7,500,000/ 1 & @R IAITEE FAR
1178 TR 3 R BT -

AR R AR AR G REE0.107 T 2 ZR
BECDBITRABTRO A B ARTRE
BO.02B T ZRDIFMZ REREERRE
R2016F5 ASHETZRREFRAE L8
3B o BRDIFFAN201655 A4 H SR R AEMK °

R2016F 12 A198 - A B EHIZH A
B 1T AN & 42 % 556,948,026 8 ot 2 A]
MR EHTH 2 RRE  BRARARZ
517,709,327 IR E @R - KABRMBRERE
BEAZ150. 117 T »
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29. AASMEBIRAEREESSHE
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(@) Statement of financial position of the Company

(a) FATMBRAER

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Contingent consideration receivables

Current assets
Deposits and prepayments
Contingent consideration receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables
Amount due to a shareholder
Amount due to a subsidiary
Secured loan

Net current asset

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Convertible bonds
Deferred tax liability

Net assets

2016
2016%F
HK$’000
FET
ERHEE
Y - BRE K& 1,002 1,332
KRB RRNEE 32,366 32,366
FEUR S AR AE - 2,982
33,368 36,680
REEE
e RIEN A 1,103 686
B ARE 7,107 5,400
NI EPNGIE 195,458 69,778
He RIESZEEY 10,599 29,169
214,267 105,033
REEE
FEETE A R E AL R 789 856
B — R AR FRIE 5,438 5,438
JE A — FEI B B A R RUE 3,929 3,029
HIRHE 15,000 15,000
25,156 24,323
RENEESE 189,111 80,710
BEERREIARE 222,479 117,390
#71&@%%
AR E 5 47,781 -
ELEFRIEEE 1,679 -
49,460 -
BEFH 173,019 117,390
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

20. XAFMBRARRBHEEHR

MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (4&)
(Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) EAATIMBERRAFE)
(Continued)
2016 2015
20164F 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital and reserves BAXRREE
Share capital R 41,024 30,670
Reserves HiE 131,995 86,720
Total equity LS 173,019 117,390
On behalf of the board of directors: RERESFE :
Fei Jie Fung Chi Kin
BA IBRRER
Director Director
EE2 E2
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29. A S HEKRREREBHERHE
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Movement of reserves of the Company

(b)

At 1 January 2015

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the
year

Issue of new shares upon
open offer

Issuance of consideration shares

Placement of new shares

Exercise of share options

Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payments

Share issuing expenses

At 31 December 2015 and
at 1 January 2016
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the
year
Recognition of equity component of
convertible bonds
Deferred tax on convertible
bonds
Conversion of convertible bonds
Released of deferred tax
upon conversion of
convertible bonds
Share issuing expenses

At 31 December 2016

R2015E1A18
FABEREA
BRAE
NRBERET
R
BIRERR
RENR
G
FERRESEN
LS A
RirgaH

R2015%E124318 %2016
F1R1H
FREERZE
Flags
BAMARERN
ERHBH
TRREFDEL
fiE
SRIARESR
RERTRRES
FERELHE

R &1Rx

R2016£12A318

(%)
(b) AATREEHEEE
Share-
based  Convertible
Share payment bonds Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses
NRiE
-3t TR
Riyi® PENT ] e 1] iR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
6,937 - - (623) 6,314
- - - (25,308) (25,308)
52,800 - - - 52,800
20,540 - - - 20,540
22,000 - = = 22,000
10,590 (2,565) - - 8,025
- 5,130 - = 5,130
(2,781) - - - (2,781)
110,086 2,565 - (25,931) 86,720
- - - (18,296) (18,296)
= = 25,276 = 25,276
- - (4,170) - (4,170)
53,900 - (18,086) - 40,814
- - 1,822 - 1,822
(171) - - - (171)
163,815 2,565 9,842 (44,227 131,995
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30. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

U]

127 Annual Report 2016 R

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group carried out
the following material transactions with its related parties:

30. EXHEALXS

(i)

Nature of transaction

XHME

BRANER B TS R LA B0 ) PR
N AEEAFEGEAREA
THETATEARS :

2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FAT

Richmind (Note)
ER(HEE) HeMx

Note: Richmind is a subsidiary of Data Champion Limited in which
members of the key management personnel of the Group, have
equity interest in Data Champion Limited.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, shareholder
of the Company has contributed certain inventories with
the amount of approximately HK$12,144,000 (2015:
nil) to the Group. Such contribution was recognised as
capital contribution to the Company. The contribution
was considered as a connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, this transaction is de
minimis transaction and exempted from the requirements
of connected transaction as set out in Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Rental expenses

1,156 960

Ktat - @ 7 B Data Champion Limited 2 Kt
BAr MASEXEZEBEAEHESR
Data Champion LimitedZ J&#E

HZE2016F12A31HIEFEE » K
REAIRREAAEETRE T17
& #712,144,0007% 7t (2015 4F -
) o ZAERMBERABRAARFE
& ZEMERABER S (EE
RAIFER EWRBIFE20E) - XA
RIEERA  ZXIBHEHRHREK
FR5 - BEHREEBTFAIZER LT
HAF20EFMEBEZ T °
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30. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 30.

(Continued)

(i) Compensation of key management personnel
Included in employee benefit expenses are key
management personnel compensation (including directors
of the Company), the details of which are as follows:

EXREALRS(E)

(i)

FTEEEASNHEE
BERFHAIANFTAEZEEEAR
(REARRES)NHE - B
BT

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and other allowance e M E MR
Retirement benefit schemes contributions 3R 1& Fll5H 24t 2%

(iii) Details of the balances with related parties at the end
of the reporting period are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FET TAET
11,654 13,176

131 126
11,785 13,302

(i) RNWMEHR - BEAEALZRHHE

R IFEIN AR & M IS A M FE22
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31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. HEHERIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RI|EER » REBR T A BHEEESHE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable DT BEBBEEYEN R R FEIE LMK
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as AEMDEHE RN
follows:

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET
Within one year —ER 2,476 2,678
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERAF(BREEEMRE) 2,195 1,416

4,671 4,094
The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. AREEREBELSESHENBETYE -
Leases are mainly negotiated for average term of three to five EXZUNFH==RF(2015%F : =F)
(2015: three) years. The Group does not have an option to MR HE I TRER - ANEE I E N EH
purchase the leased premises at the expiry of the lease period. EmEEEEEEREIERE -

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. AXKIE

2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FAET

Authorised and contracted, but not provided for: = 1% # K& 25T 47 - 1B R

- Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ —BE W - FE k&G 371 =
— Construction of plant and machinery — R M ES 685 =
1,056 =
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
Pursuant to a resolution passed at annual general meeting of the
Company held on 22 December 2010, the Option Scheme was
adopted by the Company.

The major terms of the Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

()  The purpose is to attract and retain quality personnel and
other persons to provide incentive to them to contribute to
the business and operation of the Group.

(i) The eligible person include full time or part time employees
of the Group (including any director, whether executive
or non-executive and whether independent or not,
or consultant of the Company or any subsidiary); any
holder of any securities issued by the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents
or representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers,
customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee),
landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the
Group or any invested entity or any person who, in the sole
discretion of the board of directors, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group.

(i)  The total number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued shares capital of the Company
at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
option granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme shall not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time.

(iv)  The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted to each participant
or grantee (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
share options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue from time to time unless the same is
approved by the shareholders.

33. LR BERZARRES
BIEARRARR2010F12 228 E7 2
RERBEFRASBBIRBER + NAFER
MEERR iR & -

PR 8l 2 E R IR BN T ¢

() MBEREFEZBENRERIIRREE
FEIREMAL  BERFAN
SEZEBREERDER -

(i) BAERALEEASEZBIGRE
BE(BREAR R KM EAR A
ZEFEE  THmAITESNIE
WITES T THRBVESHES
RARAER)  AREREITLZ
EREFZEARFAA : RAEH
SEAMREER ZEMEBHTRA
LR AER  RIERREK B
B BAA - HER TR X
AN BREMBRZEA)  FEHk
HE(BREMIBEERP)  RES
SEENBRECKKAEHALE
B{EhBERZERMAL -

(i) MAREARBRRELLAE - RIE
FBRERT IR R 2 ARSI
ZBEN BB BBALARTELD
BITRARZ210% » FEITERAARE
FE AR RT 8 R AR () B A B A i 5T 81
BB R TT 2 BB T 31T
ZBMEE - TEREAQRTE
EBITRAZ30%

(iv) ERIFEGSRERILE - MMEF+ 1@
AARTEBR2BEIERAZE
BiE(BREDITE O REAR
TT{ERE AR ) AT (ER B 31T &
BITZBN BT SBETRE R
T Z21% °
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

131

)

(vii)

(il
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted to each
substantial shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) of the Company or any of its respective associates
or an independent non-executive director or any of his
associates (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
share options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant: (a) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue; and (b) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the shares at the date
of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, unless the same
is approved by the shareholders.

The exercisable period should be determined by the board
of directors upon grant of the share option but in any
event should not exceed 10 years from the date of offer for
grant.

Save as determined by the board of directors provided in
the offer of the grant of the relevant share options, there is
no general requirement that a share option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be exercised.

Offer of options shall be open for acceptance in writing or
by telex received by the secretary of the Company for a
period of 21 days inclusive of, and from, the date of grant.

33. LRBBEHRZARRZS(E)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(i)

RBEEMEHLAHR(BEZA)LE
ZTZEARARARARAEHEER
R(ERRBIER EMARA) HE
ERAEABMBASBILIFNTES
SEEMBEAER 2 BRER
EETR  DEEEEARTEEBR
B)BTERERTRETETZ
BDBE - (B KT BEBARRT]
BEEITRH201% : RO)RES
R B AR R 2 W B 5t
& - #{EET151185,000,000/8
TC o BROFEGRIRALE

TTEHMAEEERN R L BRERR
EBRMEMERT - NMEEEE
R BHE+EF -

BREFERERERREHHERE
PR R B RES - WA E R
BRTERZARE 2 &RRA -

BRETARLBME(BEZAE)
2t AAEES BRI RN
EEPA BB RAWERINE
WIS -
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 33. UBrBEBZ(IHZ5H(E)

(Continued)
(ix) The subscription price of a share option must be the (ix) ERECREBEEVNERATEEZ
highest of: Ra& -
a. the closing price of a share of the Company on the a REREBERLEBHARAFGE
Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the option; AR EBE 2 AT 2 T 1B
b. the average closing price of a share of the Company b. EEBERERLHEBSFAE
from the 5 business days immediately preceding the EERARRTBEFRRGD 2F
date of grant of the option; and HIRTHE - R
c.  the nominal value of a share of the Company on the c. MRERERLEHBHAQNAE
date of grant of the option. A& R& 2 1A -
(x)  The Option Scheme is effective for 10 years from the date x) MEREFERRLASETFAR
of grant. R e
At the end of the reporting period, the number of shares in RIEER - REBBEREFIIERE R
respect of which may be issued upon exercise of share options AT 2 BIREEIT 1B T AL 31T
granted and remain outstanding under the Option Scheme and Z &8 B A37,500,0000% (20154
was 37,500,000 (2015: 7,500,000), representing 1.8% (2015: 7,500,000/%) * HER AR A NZA
2.4%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. At ZEETRMDZ1.8% (2015 1 2.4%) °
31 December 2016, no share options was granted under the 2016F12 318 - I EFERERE
Option Scheme (2015: 15,000,000). BE IS #E =T 214% (20154 15,000,000

) o
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 33. UBrBEBZ(IHZ5H(E)
(Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: EARERE TR 2 FBIT

Number of share options
RREYE
Outstanding at

Outstanding at 31 December Outstanding at

1 January Granted Exercised Lapsed  2015and at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Adjustment 31 December

2015 during the year  during the year during the year 1 January2016 during the year during the year during the year for the year 2016

10158 A2015%12R31A 1A2016%

1R18 R01651R18 128318

Share option type EhiEER HATE  RERRE  RERMR  RERKR mAE  RERRE  RERGE O RERXY  REASE  ARGE

2015 N15F = 16,000,000 (7,500,000 - 7,500,000 - - - 30,000,000 37,500,000
Exercisable at the end

of the year RERAfE 7,600,000 37,500,000

Welghted average evercise prce 177 - HKSIITOET  HKSIIT0ET - HKS1IT0%T = = = - HKS0.234%7

HZE2015F12 A31 HIEFE - B

During the year ended 31 December 2015, share options were
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granted on 27 May 2015. The estimated fair values of the share
options granted on this date is HK$5,130,000.

This fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing
model. The inputs in the model were as follows:

R2015F5 A27HIKRE - RZBERHE
BERSHE 2 5T A S E 55,130,000/ 7T ©

HRAFEDFEBAN -5 REEER
XEtE - BA280T

Options grant on

27 May 2015

#20155%5H27H

R Z iRk

Grant date share price (HK$) B BERECET) 1.17
Exercise price (HK$) TEEGET) 1.17
Expected volatility (%) TEERIR (B D) 75%
Expected life (years) TEERFEA () 3 yearstE
Risk-free rate (%) mREERAE(ESL) 0.72%

Expected dividend yield TR AR S i o




33.

34.

Zig X FEEEHFR AT Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 3
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
consideration.

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately
before the dates of grant of share options on 27 May 2015 was
HK$1.17 per share.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$5,130,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 in relation
to share options granted by the Company.

The Black-Scholes pricing model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the share options are based on
the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 8 December 2014, the Company and Mr. Chow Tsi Tung
(the “Vendor”) has entered into a SPA, pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital
in Core Kingdom Limited and corresponding shareholder’s loan
due by Core Kingdom Limited, which indirectly owns 51% equity
interest in Tong Yin, a company engages in retail of luxury brand
silverware and silver utensils in the PRC. The consideration
to be settled in the following manners upon completion of the
acquisition:

(i)  HK$4,800,000 in cash upon signing of the SPA as the
refundable deposit;

(i)  HK$31,200,000 which shall be satisfied by allotment
and issue of the 26,000,000 consideration shares upon
completion.

The acquisition has been completed on 27 February 2015 (the
“Completion Date”) and had been accounted for using the
acquisition method.

33.

34.

Uikt ABRZHARX S (E)

BHIREDERARBBE=ZFZRE
FESLR IR EEE - RAPTERA 2 RHF
HIERBEEEHIFERME - 1TERH
RIIREEBEREZZEMEREMRT
DEE:3

ERTHEBREBBIIARTKRDR
2015F5 27 B 2 WM EAERK1.175
ﬁo

HE2015FE12A31HILEE - AEH
MARFERE ZERERREAIY
5,130,000/ 7T °

1) F2— 45 4R BT 52 (B 2 PR A1 £ AR
W2 ATE - AN EMRIEATE
BYRBRIAEE L BEFEA AR -
WA E BEREE T EBER2 T
B TA R o

EBEH

2014512 A8H * "ARIHEFAFR %L
E(MBERDETEERZ - Bt - A2
7] [F & U BE Core Kingdom Limited 2 &6
B2 17B K} Core Kingdom LimitedZ|
HA & < #B FE X 3R B 3K Core Kingdom
Limited@#Z#E A MR - —HRFEIES
TEZCRERBRREERAZAA)
51% 2 lxHE - REKRKEEFETKE
BUATHREE

(i) 4,800,000 AR S HFARE
BERBBITRIERTREEEX
-F

(i) 31,200,000 7T #5 1A ST AK 12 135 18
Big 3% & 2% 17 26,000,000 A% X 1B %
L-E

W EE=ETHE R 2015F2 A27H ([5EK H
8 ) e W IR IR A ABR ©

Annual Report 2016 £ i

134



Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 34. ¥RBEHE)
Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$362,000 have Ut B #H 8 BX 4N #49362,00078 7T B2 51 A &
been charged to “administrative expenses” in the consolidated F2015F12A31 B ILFEMGEER
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for REMEEKRERA [TTBAXZ H -

the year ended 31 December 2015.

HK$’000
FET

Consideration satisfied by:

— Cash —E < 4,800
- Consideration shares (note (i) ~-RERAD (HTaE3) 23,140
— Profit guarantee, at fair value (note (i) SR FMRE - A FE(H ) (20,536)
Total consideration AR (E 7,404

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition

RE BBRBATHAXNM :

RUEEEH s EWBEEERCAERE

are as follows: R
Net assets acquired: BB EEFE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB k& 3,150
Inventories FE 3,013
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TEFIE -~ e RHEMEIRFRIE 1,002
Cash and cash equivalents HehReFEY 16,627
Trade and other payables B 5 M E M 5RIE (2,466)
Amount due to the shareholder FET AR R 5K I8 (7,299)
Total identifiable net assets AR FEEBE 14,033
Less: Non-controlling interests W IEE s (9,838)
Shareholders loan assigned to the Group AEFAERZREER 7,293
Bargain purchase gain recognised in a business REBKEHHERZ HEEE KR

combination (4,084)
Total consideration BRE 7,404
Net cash inflow on business combination: FREBEHBESRAFRE
Consideration paid in cash BERENRE (4,800)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BUERSMREFEY 16,627
Net cash inflow REMAFRE 11,827
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

The fair value of 26,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued as
part of the consideration paid for acquisition of Core Kingdom Group with
amount of approximately HK$23,140,000 was based on the spot price of
the Company’s share price as at the Completion Date, which is HK$0.89
per share.

Pursuant to the SPA entered in relation to the acquisition, the Vendor has
guaranteed that the audited profit after tax of Tong Yin and its subsidiary
for the three financial years ended 31 December 2015, 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2017 shall not be less than RMB20,000,000,
RMB24,000,000 and RMB30,000,000 (each the “Profit Guarantee”)
respectively.

In case the Profit Guarantee is not fulfilled for the corresponding year, the
Vendor shall pay 51% of the Shortfall to the Company within seven days
of the delivery of the audited consolidated financial statements, and for the
avoidance of doubt, if Tong Yin and its subsidiary sustained loss for such
financial year, 51% of the amount of such loss shall be included as part of
the Shortfall.

The Vendor expressly agrees that 10,000,000 of the Consideration Shares
(“Escrow Shares”) shall be deposited into a securities account in the name
of the Vendor but all trading of such account can only be operated by the
Company singly and no amount shall be withdrawn from such account
except with joint instruction of the Vendor and the Company, until the
obligation and liabilities of the Vendor have been fully discharges and
satisfied.

The fair value of Profit Guarantee as at Completion Date, amount to
approximately HK$20,536,000.

34. EBEH(E)
Wit -

0] E &5t W i Core Kingdom = B Fff 32+ X &
#923,140,00087CH) — 2D + AR RIS T
26,000,0004% T @A% 7 A FETHER AR F]
R5epk A HIRE 2 B R ERSR0.898 T

(ii) BRERKBEEMI I 2EE NS BEA
REFEBIEREMBARIREZ2015F12 8
31H 2016412 A31H &2017412 A 31
A 1E = @0 R E E 2 8 BB B 1% 0 7
2 B LR AR #20,000,0007T © AR
24,000,0007T & A K #30,000,0007T (& &
DEFIRE]D) ©

fifl il M RE AR R F EAREED - BHAR
RN BEZRGEVBHRREF LRRRAR
AN ERERS1%  MARLES  WERRK
H B A RR AR B E ARSI
AZBELENI%EABREERN  EREH
28D e

& 77 B[R 310,000,000 B X B A% 17 (T 5E
BERODEGANBEFEEREZZELFE
P EBZRFPZMAERSEREAARER
BRIEAEE A RARARKE SR A Al RE
B BEEBEIEBRECEEHRRKE
1T

GHRENRTRBB2AFENA
20,536,000 7T °
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the profit for the year of approximately
HK$16,671,000 was attributable to the additional business
generated by Core Kingdom Group. Revenue for the year
includes HK$63,767,000 in respect of Core Kingdom Group.

Had these business combinations been effected at
1 January 2015, the revenue of the Group would have been
HK$231,620,000, and the profit for the year would have been
HK$12,815,000. The directors of the Company consider these
‘pro-forma’ numbers to represent an approximate measure
of the performance of the combined Group on an annualised
basis and to provide a reference point for comparison in future
periods.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group
had Core Kingdom Group been acquired at the beginning of the
current year, the directors of the Company have:

o calculated depreciation of property, plant and equipment
acquired on the basis of the fair values arising in the initial
accounting for the business combination rather than
the carrying amounts recognised in the pre-acquisition
financial statements; and

° determined borrowing costs based on the funding levels,
credit ratings and debt/equity position of the Group after
business combination.

Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

34. EBEH(E)

KBS ARERENTE

F 3 8 FE Core Kingdom £ B #5 2
B 58 S 3 7% FE 15 49 16,671,000 % 7T °
% A U A £ $& Core Kingdom £ & #)
63,767,000/ 7T °

WMZEEBEHER2015F1 A1 &
B A& E WA K & 231,620,000 7
JC i R A A&12,815,0008 7T ©
RARAREERE  ZEZEHZ1HFER
RAEMBEEERF(CEEFEZHRNE
B WAERERREBHEERz2ZEHE

=
& o

¥ Core Kingdom % M 3 7 4 & ) 1
W OREEARE [ HE KA KRR
B AARIEE

o FERKEBEYE BERRBITE
o REDRBEBAHRBINL
SETREMELZAFE - MIFK
BRI BHRCEAREE &

o REAKERERKEHENESK
¥ EREKEYR/ ERnE
ERERA
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from the use of financial instruments in its ordinary
course of operations. The financial risks include market risk
(mainly foreign currency risk), credit risks and liquidity risk.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the notes
below. The Group’s overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by key management under the
policies approved by the directors. The Group does not have
written risk management policies. However, the directors of the
Company and senior management of the Group meet regularly
to identify and evaluate risks and to formulate strategies to
manage financial risks on timely and effective manner. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
applied by the Group to mitigate these risks are set out below.

Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the end of the reporting period categorised
as follows:

35.

LREMERRAFEITE

AREENHEELIBRG AR
ITEMAELESBEAR - 2REARS
ETSAR(EERMEER) « EEE
BREABDESAR - AHSMI AN
BRIA TR B E - ARENEER
REIBETR BTSN
50 LB 41 74 o L 1 5 2% 3 ) VR AE TR A
pE AREEHTIEERERBES
BUEMTERST - A E L W EERR
EERE - T ARAEERALE
EREBASTHEHEABIRTER
B A T o SR DA TS R AU B R
RMEK - BZSERTAMMENERE
7K 52 SR PR DA B (7 B LR O B o LT
m -

SRAER SRS R

A EEN RS BRI A B BRR R
RNSRAERSBARNEAES S
-

2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FAT

Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets AfEHESREE
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEGF AR

profit or loss: SREE :

— Contingent consideration receivables — R ARE
Loans and receivables: B R EWIE

— Trade receivables — B S EIE

— Deposits paid and other receivables
— Amount due from a related company
— Cash and cash equivalents

— RS R ARG
— B —THRE R BIFA
—RELREEHEED

9,000 9,000
7,107 8,382
72,706 23,719
14,605 12,911
126 =
127,722 145,700
231,266 199,712
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35. 2 EAMRTEREAFHETE(E)

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

2016
20164F
HK$°000
F#ETT

Financial liabilities ERBE
Financial liabilities measured

at amortised cost:

— Trade and other payables

— Secured loan

— Amount due to a shareholder

— Amounts due to non-controlling interests

— Amounts due to related companies

— Convertible bonds

— B 5 R EMENFIA
—HHEMER

— BN —RIRRFHIA
— A SRR s IR
— N BE R BRIR
— A BRERES

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and majority of
transactions are denominated in HK$, USD and RMB. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities, which are denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency of the Group.

At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
monetary assets and liabilities of the group companies, which
are denominated in foreign currencies, are as follows:

Liabilities

BB AR SRR (E -

2015
20154
HK$’000
F&T

52,578 31,731
15,000 15,000
5,438 5,438
105 225
9,592 =
47,781 =
130,494 52,394

she IR
ARERE SRR B R - XS
B BB« ETRARMEE - 5
EEKSHARERRS  DRAAER
BEMEL  BAAEED L E R SN
A -

REBEHR  SERAEREERA
B ARE B ASNEFHE - #Han T -

Assets

BfE BE
At 31 December

®12A318

2016
20164
HK$°000

F#&T
RMB AREE 1,804
UsD =TT 1,616

2015 2016 2015
20154 20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TAT FHET T
2,366 20,639 24,813
361 42,088 52,870
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of RMB
against HK$. Since HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group does
not expect any significant movement in USD/HK$ exchange
rate and this is excluded from the sensitivity analysis below.
Management will monitor foreign exchange exposure to mitigate
the foreign currency risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A negative number below indicates an increase
in pre-tax profit where HK$ weaken 5% against RMB. For a 5%
strengthening of HK$ against the relevant currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and the balances
below would be positive.

35. £REREERRAFETE(E)

eGP
AEBETRASTARKELBITHINER
B o RRETTEXTHE - AKETEY
XLABTEXTEHREANES)
HWAREEFRETIGRZREDN - EEE
75 85 BRI [ B DA B (R NS LBy o

AEEREWERAIMNEAENEER
BESEIMNEEHBE - AEEHE
ERINERR  WHERNETERY
HERINERRR -

TRAASINAREEBTHAARE
BREZESDZBREE - 5% 2 FREX
REBEHINEEXRTRSEZH 2
il > BURE D ITEBFEAINEFHEZ H
AXNEBEE - WRREBRHINE
EXEHERFELAE - THAHBR
BBTTHE ARBRZES%E - BiADENE
IBINEHE - BT HARAEETES%
AU T EN R ERELEFEZERY
%,

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi&T F&T

RMB AR

Management considered the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk as the
exposure at the end of each reporting period does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

942 1,122

BEERS  ARSREARZARK
ERRAFEZER - HEREDTEY
BB IMNERBR T RRKIE -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

141

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable rate borrowings (note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements for the details of secured loan). The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
at the end of each reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points (2015: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$75,000 (2015:
HK$75,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable rate of borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the terms
of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had certain concentration of
credit risk as 80% (2015: 68%) of the trade receivables of the
Group were due from a single customer. Management of the
Company considered the credit risk is limited since the Group
only trade with customers with an appropriate credit history and
good reputation. Management of the Company monitored the
financial background and creditability of those debtors on an
ongoing basis.
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SHEBERRAFETE(E)

I 2= E b
AREBAS Z N RERE RS RFE
EE(FREERERFBTAL2HES
AR E25) - REBEZWARE
LHEREER EFRMIGH KRB
FE o AEE B R ERI AN REIPK
RoAMm BEEESEREMNEAR I
TR E B P ERM KRR

TXHEE DN HIRE S RS BAARIEST
AETAMNERRET o ZD M RE®R
EHREAEEZESHTAREFRE
EiERE - 50E 2 (20154F 50K EE) £
FRTERAEZEEABANIREF
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AR B RTAS o

AR EF T FE50E B (20154 : 50
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ANEEREE2016F12A31 B IEFE
B BR B AT I R 4> 38 N 475,000
JL (20154 : 75,0008 7T) © It JhE B H
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s policy to manage credit risk is to deal only with
credit worthy counterparties. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management has formulated a credit policy and, delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken.

The Group deposited its cash and cash equivalents with
approved and reputable banks. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the
banks may cause the Group’s right with respect to cash and
cash equivalents held to be delayed or limited. Management
of the Company monitors the credit rating of these banks on
an ongoing basis, and considers that the Group’s exposure to
credit risk at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were minimal.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group
is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables and its financing obligations, and also in respect of its
cash flow management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of funding
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and considered by management of the Company to
have been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual maturities
for its financial liabilities at 31 December 2016 and 2015. When
the creditor has a choice of when the liability is settled, the
liability is included on the basis of the earliest date on when the
Group can be required to pay.

Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments, each
instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which the Group
is committed to pay.

35.

SHEBERRAFETE(E)

e ()

AEEEREERROBREASREEA
RENHFHIRS - REEREEER
B EEECHEEERK  XRIKE
BEEEEEERSE  HEREEIET
HEERRF - WHERRIRAETTE

AEBEBERCRRESEZEMERNE
RAREEBRITNERTT - ZFRITHE
IENEBAEERAEERAFRSE
RIB e EE YRR TR X 2R
#l e RABEBEERHEERZEIRIT
WEEFR - URAAEER2016F &
201512 A1 AFTAXWEER KR E
B e

AEEEBAEFE—BEREERE -
A BRI S B REARENE
B R R BRI o

MENE &

MEE TR EANREREEITAR
EHAE—EHMEEFENTRAEEA
EEMERER AEEEFEZSE
NRELETREAZE ST EARERE
MEEBENTEAERBDESRAR - A&
BB RREREEKFNRBEER
BERACARED  UREEHEK
HESHE -

AEEEREFE—EERARDESR
B ARAEEBRRAZEZREAEN
EERDESER

TREBRAEBR2016F £2015F 12
ASAMERMEBENRTENFHS
o BERAEEERERAEBER 8
EEERAEEREREENKTHEH
ABR ©

ENHBEEER  SOHIRTAE
B o AN R AGE TR S R R e
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35. 2HERBEEEAFESE(£E)
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) TENEERAM(E)

At 31 December 2016
R2016512A318
Within Total
one year or Within More than undiscounted Carrying

on demand 2-5 years 5 years amount amount
—Ehg
REXE MELER EENE  RERAH FREE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET

Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ F#T£ 2B EE

Trade and other payables BHREMENE 52,578 - - 52,578 52,578
Secured loan BHRAEER 15,089 - - 15,089 15,000
Amount due to a shareholder N —&RETIE 5,438 - - 5,438 5,438
Amounts due to non-controlling eI ERR B IR
interests 105 - - 105 105
Amounts due to related companies  JEfEEA R FUB 9,592 - - 9,592 9,592
Convertible bonds R ES - 53,052 - 53,052 47,781
Total Bt 82,802 53,052 - 135,854 130,494
At 31 December 2015
20155124318
Within Total
one year or Within More than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2-5 years 5 years amount amount
—FRHR
ZoRE WERER FEAE  REREE EEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET FHT
Non-derivative financial liabilities It mERE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFIE 31,731 - - 31,731 31,731
Secured loan BEERER 15,089 - - 15,089 15,000
Amount due to a shareholder Eff—&RkR7E 5,438 - - 5,438 5,438
Amounts due to non-controlling JER IR R R
interests 225 - - 225 225
Total et 52,483 - - 52,483 52,394
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
markets are determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices and ask prices respectively;

° the fair values of derivative instruments are calculated
using quoted prices. When such prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow analysis is performed using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments
for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for
optional derivatives; and

° the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding those described above) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair
values, except for the liability of convertible bond, the fair value
of the liability component of convertible bonds is approximately
HK$48,968,000 at 31 December 2016. The fair value of the
liability component of convertible bonds is measured using
discounted cash flows method in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on observable market data.

35. £REREERRAFETE(E)

SRTRZAEE
TREENCREBEBECATEEEN
T -

o EABEEBEEGRRRIGMILERTIS
BEENSREERTRAGBHNAYF
BENRI2EMSEAREREEE
E

o PTETIAMRATEDNRBEE -
HMARBEESERRERS - AIFFHE
TET AR SR KER
Was R AREE A TE - ST
ETARRBEEERAEEAT
B: &

s HiemEERERAEB(IERE
tiemEERERAB)INATF
BNRFRBESRESTREBELR
EEEAEE -

ARREERE  HHREMBEREER
HEeREEREREBENERENERLRD
TEMBE - EABRRESNEERIN -
20164128318 @ AJBBREHFAEE
B B A F{EH A48,968,000/8 7T © A
BRREHBEF PO R FEDKATNE
BeREZFZ(EPHBERNRAZEY
ERSAEBEERABEMSER)E -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified and determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

o Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are input for which market data are not available; and

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

35.

Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

SHEBERRAFETE(E)

EMIAZAFEE)
TREIAFERREPREEHEE
FAPEMNERMTANAYE - ZFERT
AEDERTAMBREENE1HRA
FEFEMATH=EAFEBR - &
SE2E[HERMAKANBAEBNA
BERREENREEN  BATEFEHER
KEETERIATEEEAR :

. B-BAME: EERE-EAS
ANE(BHEAAES 8 EEH B A
ERTS A AR RE) A
EVNTE

s FEMME:ERF-_EHBA
EBE(ARESE -—ERNABEREA
B) BREFRBERNTAIHE
BABERFERFE - TAIERE
ANERERRTSBBENEAE
IS4

o F-EHMLE: RBEXNTAER
R ANERFTEQATE

Quoted
prices
in active Significant
market for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEE EX EX
RiEENS Hiy iz AIUHE
ZiR{E BABE BABE
(E—1R) (=4 (B=4) @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2016 2016512H318
Fair value on a recurring basis REEEEHEZATHE
Financial assets at fair value BATEGABEZ
through profit or loss: SREE
- Contingent consideration — BREARE
receivables - - 7,107 7,107
At 31 December 2015 20155124318
Fair value on a recurring basis RREEEFE 7 ATE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEG AR
through profit or loss: SREE
- Contingent consideration — EWEARE
receivables = = 8,382 8,382
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

As described in note 19 to the consolidated financial statement,
the fair value of contingent consideration receivables in relation
to the acquisition of Core Kingdom Group are measured at
fair value under expected present value method and take into
consideration of whether the Profit Guarantee is probable to be
fulfilled. The unobservable inputs used in respect of the valuation
are (i) expected future profitability for three scenarios and (ii)
probability distribution of three different conditions.

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the
expected profitability of Tong Yin and its subsidiary.

The directors of the Company have engaged Ascent Partners to
determine the fair value of contingent consideration receivables
by adopting appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of a financial asset, the directors of
the Company work closely with Ascent Partners to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The management of the Company reports the findings to the
directors of the Company at the end of each reporting period
to explain the cause of fluctuations in fair value of the financial
asset.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of contingent consideration
receivables are disclosed above.

35. ERMEAMEERAFEETE(E)

SRMTARAZAFEE)

WERA M RERM 19T HE - A%
#Core Kingdom& B K EW S ARE R
FEDEBERAREETE - WL KA
MRBLSIER - MIEARGBRGHEERD
BEBRBAREBR(N)=ERRAOTELDR
REBA BN RN =FTRE R TEHE
FIEEN DR -

BEARKENBARNEDR
BN EHEEERE-

ARAEFEZBIHRBRANEE R
FEMAEGMETERBARE  BEE
WRARBZAFE -

REEEREEQATER AARES
AIERRANFTHRLBSEILNGES
ENBABE  c ARREEENES®RE
HIRAARREEERER - UFHAZ
TREEAFEKDOREA -

REEREIKARERFERERNG
B ERBABIBRERN EXORE -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35.

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in contingent
consideration receivables which are classified as level 3
instruments:

Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

LRIEAMEERAFEFE(E)

EMIRAZAFEE)
TREVNDBERE=ZERIAZEKRK
ARERE) :

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 January M1A1R

Arising in acquisition of subsidiaries U BE Bt B A IR EE A
Loss arising on fair value change NHEEBEEEE
At 31 December M12H31H

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

Due to the variety of basis of determination used in profit
forecast, it is not practicable to provide any meaningful
sensitivity in relation to the critical assumptions concerning
future profitability of acquired business and the potential impact
on the fair value change on contingent consideration receivable
at the end of reporting period.

However, if the probability of worst and best scenarios is 10%
lower or higher and the probability of normal scenarios is 20%
lower or higher, the resulting impact to the fair value change
of contingent considerations receivables are within 5%. If
the expected profit after tax of the acquired business is 20%
lower or higher, the resulting impact to the fair value change of
contingent consideration receivables are within 30%.

FET F#ET
8,382 -
- 20,536
(1,275) (12,154)
7,107 8,382

HE2016F & 2015F 12 A31 H IEF
B F-EREF_EHZELEE
B O NEERENERNE=[ER

AEENBRRANSIBBRZEHXB
NEFHHHERIFEERZENEA
K#EH -

el 77 B R TR B M W 5 R
R - i BOES A5 2 KRB R
SARBATEED Y BEYENEA
15 3507 A1 1 L 5 38 MO SRS 5 47
UK o

M 3R & = R & 1R LAY AT BE 1R
HIEHN10% - HIRIEFE B AT BEIE IR
D EM20% - BB HARERF
BEHELZZERNENE%AAN - &
FE SR 75 B TR HARR 0 12 2 MR > 348 AN
20% - AIEWSKARERFEESEL
FERBRN30% AR
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36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern and to provide
an adequate return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged during the current and prior years.

The Group is not subject to any external imposed capital
requirements.

Gearing ratio

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on annual basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends, issue of new
shares and repurchase of shares as well as issue of new debts
or the redemption of existing debts.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

36. EXER
AEBEREER  UBERAEENE
BARERKYE  ARESZELERER
AEE - AEMHERHIEE® - A
ENERERENANFERBEFEHR

ARG B EE R AN RN E AR

HEEBMRELE
ARAEEBFERIERREE - R
s e —80 ARAEFTEREN
AR EERRIRODEBORER - RIZ
AREMEEHNHERES  ASBHER
IRERBE ~ BT R E A A & %
THEFXERNREGER FOEEEE
RIRHE o

RBEMRZEERBLLERMT ¢

Total debts (Note) BEfs54a58 (M)

Less: Cash and bank balances

Net cash R /F8

Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZNA=#EH A E(h#EZS

Total debt to equity ratio

Note: Total debts include secured loan and convertible bonds in notes 25 and 26
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

o IRe MIRTTEER

(CULEEER A Fad S

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
62,781 15,000
(127,722) (145,700)
(64,941) (130,700)
226,312 142,555
28% 11%

HfeE: ERAED BB S M RA M TS5 kM

FE26RT I R IR R R R AT R AR SR

148

Annual Report 2016 £ i




149 Annual Report 2016 F3R

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or assets of the Group. To give
details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive

Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited Z& A ¥EBEERE AT

37. MBATHE
ARBEEBFEMIERNRERE - ER
stz —&0 EEERBEAKAR
HEEFRIRD A BORR - RIEART]
EEMERRS  AKERERIREKR
B BITH R RBE RO A RETHE

length. BRELREEBFTEHEERELRR
1o
Class of share/ Issued and fully Proportion of ownership
Place/country of registered paid share capital/ interest and voting power Principal activities
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital held registered capital held by the Company and place
BiER EBTR AATRE
ARSI HEN BRRE/ Z A LB TEEBR
MEBASEHE W/ ER #MEF HAMEX R FE EEE
2016 2015
20165F 20154
Ampress Merchandising Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100 100 Trading of watches,
Limited costume jewelries and
accessories in Hong
Kong
MEEEBRAF BE EiEk 100,000/ 7T WEBEEER
NEIRE KB
Ampress Packaging Asia  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 100 100 Trading of display and
Limited packaging products in
Hong Kong
MEBE(TH)BRAF FE gl 500,000/ 7T REBBERFIRBER
Core Kingdom Limited BVI Ordinary USD50,000 100 100 Investment holding
EBRIS Timik 50,000% 7 REZR
Display & Packaging Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$300,000 100 100 Trading of display and
packaging products in
Hong Kong
BB Eak 300,000/ 7T NEREERIIRBER
EC Pacific Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 100 100 Trading of watches and
accessories in Hong
Kong
RERTF)ERAA BE TRk 500,000 7 REBE BB REH
Powerwell Pacific BVI Ordinary USD800 100 100 Investment holding
Limited
EBRLEHS TiEk 800% T REER
State Achieve Investments  BVI Ordinary USD1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited
EBRIAS EEK 1% REZR
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Class of share/
registered
capital held

Rt ER,/
at i3 fa
e EX dfEF

Issued and fully
Place/country of

Name of subsidiary incorporation

ERTR
BRRE

MEBAEEHE dMEF

paid share capital/
registered capital

37. MBATFHEE)

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power Principal activities
held by the Company and place

FATRE
RS EEXBR
RizEH# SEE

2016 2015
20164 20154

MIBEESELE PRC
BRAF

Registered RMB10,000,000

T Bal

LEREREEE PRC
BB

Registered RMB2,000,000

HE wff

MMEREEREER PRC
BR A7 (Note)

Registered HK$40,000,000

(HiE) HE i 40,000,000/ 7

HMEREHE PRC
B2 F(Note)

Registered HK$100,000,000

(Hiiz) o i 100,000,000 7

Note: Wholly foreign-owned enterprise

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities outstanding at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during the year.

Except for Core Kingdom Limited, Powerwell Pacific Limited
and State Achieve Investments Limited which are directly held
by the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The following table lists out the information relating to
Tong Yin and its subsidiary, a subsidiary of the Group with
material non-controlling interests. The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts before any
intercompany elimination.

AR 10,000,000

AR 2,000,000

51 51 Retail and wholesale of
luxury brand silverwares
and silver utensils in the
PRC

RPRERETERBEES
mERERREER

51 51 Retail and wholesale of
luxury brand silverwares
and silver utensils in the
PRC

RARBERETERBEES
miERERREER

100 100 Retail and wholesale of
luxury brand silverwares
and silver utensils in the
PRC

ERERETERBEES
miRRRRREER

100 100 Manufacture and sale of
rechargeable batteries,
electric vehicles and
related products in the
PRC

RHBEHERFERSEM -
BHAERIEEER

M - 2SNEDE

R EHARKNERTAERE - SR
BARRB R EES R

FxCore Kingdom Limited + Powerwell Pacific
Limited &z State Achieve Investments Limited
BARBIEERE - FTEEMMBAEY
BAARREERE -

ggzx#m&&ﬁz#egmgﬁﬂ

TR FMBR(AEEHEFEEX
FERERNMBAR) ZER - LT
2z MBERBRERERER AR

RIS HAT Z &80 °
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37.
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

151

Name of subsidiary

MtBAEIRFR (&)
BREXEERERZHELZEMBAR
=3 G )

Proportion of
ownership interest and
voting right held by
non-controlling interests

Place of incorporation and
principal place of business

FiERESFEZ
MIB AT MR EEEE I, FRBHELL Bl R 1 2 4E
2016 2015
20164 20154
Tong Yin PRC 49% 49%
IR &
EBREREEEFR AR (Note) (K17E) PRC 49% 49%
s

Note :
(“Tong Yin Group”).

Tong Yin Group

LBREXREEEGMR AT is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tong Yin

Kt : LBRERAEEARARNKBR(AR
KEDz2EMBAR

BIRE B

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Annual Report 2016 £ i

2016 2015
20164 20154

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fi#T FET

mEEE 100,562 52,878
IERBNEE 3,674 3,840
mEAE (39,572) (16,625)
ERBEE - =
RARHER ANEEEZ 32,978 20,447
FEIE AR AE = 31,686 19,646
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37.
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Tong Yin Group (Continued)

MtBAEIRFR (&)
BREXEERERZHELZEMBAR
=3 G )

BREE (A

Revenue

Expenses

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss attributable
to owners of the Company

Other comprehensive loss attributable
to non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable
to owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable
to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

Net cash generated from operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash inflow

WA

F s

ZAYNGCIE PN bRl
TR AR PR A

F R )

ARBHER AEIEEM

ZHEE

R R EER

FREMZHEEER

AARER AEME
2 E e B
BN S E RS R

FRE2HKEARE

REBRHELNRSIFR

RERSAANBRSIFER

BERMAZRER

2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
75,749 63,767
(47,315) (41,869)
14,501 11,168
13,933 10,730
28,434 21,898
(1,971) (962)
(1,893) (922)
(3,864) (1,884)
12,530 10,206
12,040 9,808
24,570 20,014
17,796 22,670
(2,089) 2,111)
15,707 20,559
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38.

39.

40.

153 Annual Report 2016 F3R

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the followings major non-cash investing
and financing activities which were not reflected in the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
had completed the acquisition of the Sale Assets with
the amounts of approximately HK$98,606,000 and
HK$21,362,000 respectively, which was estimated
by the directors of the Company in reference to the
valuations prepared by Ascent Partners, were satisfied by
issuance of convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$110,000,000.

The equity component of the convertible bonds is
measured as the difference between the fair value of the
Sale Assets and the liability component of the convertible
bonds in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, a shareholder
contributed certain inventories with the amount of
approximately HK$12,144,000 to the Group.

() On 19 December 2016, 517,709,327 shares were allotted
and issued upon the conversion of convertible bonds with
the principal amount of HK$56,948,026 at the conversion
price of HK$0.11 per share by a holder of the convertible
bonds, which constitute 25.24% of the Company’s issued
share capital.

(d) On 27 February 2015, the Group had completed the
acquisition of entire issued share capital in Core Kingdom
Limited at a consideration of approximately HK$7,404,000
in which part of the consideration was satisfied by a cash
deposit of HK$4,800,000 paid during the year ended 31
December 2014.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 February 2017, the Company signed another supplemental
loan agreement to further extend the repayment date of the
secured loan to another 12 months from the first extended
repayment date.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2017.

38.

39.

40.

EXHERERS
AEBMBETTIINERFERGRE At
BEY  ZFAPAUENGARERE
RARMR :

(@) #HZE2016F12A31BILLEE » K
& E % 5l LA BR E (& 49 98,606,000
7 7T & 21,362,000 7% 7t 78 Ak BB
HEEE  ZEEHAALRRE
E2EVAMRE 2 EEMEET
I35 @ E 17 A& % A110,000,000
BT AR ES T o

RIBE B I RS LERNE 257 A
DXHE - AHRRES RS
DR FEEERXFEEMRRIE
HREID ZHNERTHE -

(b) MREE2016F12HA31HIEFE
—ZREAEAREEERETEFEED
12,144,000/ 7T °

(c) M2016%F12H19H @ AR EH
BB AAGROA1E T 2 R (EE
# 7K & 58 556,948,026 78 7T Z A
HPIEE A% » 517,709,327 B A% 1D
BB REIT  BRARF D BT
&R #)25.24% °

(d) H2015F2H27H @ REEBEE K
I B Core Kingdom Limited 2 3F &
BITRA - REX 7,404,000
gL R Eo R ELE E20144F
12A31BEFEvENReZS
4,800,000/ 7T 1+ ©

REHEEIE

R2017F 2868 ' "R R BEE]— B
WARERHZE  WEBEERERNEER
BHARVIAKELEREZEBBHBER12ME
)E] °

FEMBRREM

GAETBBRRCDN2017FE3A27TBEE
g b R IR o
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL hETBRE
SUMMARY
for the year ended 31 December 2016 BL220169F12H31 H IEF/E

For the year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLFEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
20165 20154 20144 20134 20124
LG HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEr FHET T FHET TFET

Results ]
Revenue WA 303,268 222,647 158,128 127,808 197,655
Profit before income tax b B 5 54 B g £ 39,080 20,864 9,491 21,967 3,633
Income tax expenses FriS At i =2 14,819 (11,798) (2,974) (718) (1,326)
Profit for the year from FRBERKEEBESE

continuing operations 25 % 24,261 9,066 6,517 21,249 2,307

Profit/(loss) for the year from fFERE & F& & ERBEL
discontinued operation 2w F (&) - = 282 (5,685) -

Profit for the year F N A 24,261 9,066 6,799 15,564 2,307

Profit/(loss) for the year THIALEHFER

attributable to: wH(BE) ¢
Owners of the Company ZN/NGIE 2SN 10,328 (1,664) 6,799 15,564 2,307
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR AE = 13,933 10,730 = = =

24,261 9,066 6,799 15,564 2,307
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Assets and liabilities BERERE

At 31 December
®12A31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
20164 20154 20144 20134 20124
LG HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
F#ETT FET FAET FAET FAET

Total assets 1aE 402,797 224,463 65,992 113,979 116,482

Total liabilities waE (144,799)  (62,262)  (41,815)  (60,024)  (58,676)

257,998 162,201 24177 53,955 57,806

Equity attributable to: THIAT LR
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ SN 226,312 142,555 24,177 53,955 57,806
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR RE = 31,686 19,646 = = =

257,998 162,201 24177 53,955 57,806
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